
 

 

 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

2025 General Shareholders' Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Date and Time: 10:30 am, June 19, 2025 (Thursday) 

Location: 4F., No. 101, Songjiang Road, Taipei City (Upgrade Business Center - Songjiang 101) 

 

Meeting Handbook 

Stock Code: 4711 



 
             

YONG SHUN CHEMICAL.,LTD 

 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 

One. Meeting Procedure  --------------------------------------------------------------- P.1 

Two. Meeting Agenda  ----------------------------------------------------------------- P.2 

Three. Report Items  --------------------------------------------------------------------- P.3 

Four. Matters for Ratification  --------------------------------------------------------- P.3 

Five. Discussion Items  ----------------------------------------------------------------- P.5 

Six. Election Matters  ------------------------------------------------------------------- P.5 

Seven. Other Motions  ------------------------------------------------------------------ P.7 

Eight. Extraordinary Motions ----------------------------------------------------------- P.7 

Nine. Meeting Adjourned  -------------------------------------------------------------- P.7 

Ten. Attachments  

Attachment 1: 2024 Business Report ------------------------------------------- P.8 

Attachment 2: Audit Committee's Review Report  -------------------------- P.12 

Attachment 3: Independent Auditor's Report and Parent Company Only 

Financial Statements -------------------------------------------- P.13 

Attachment 4: Independent Auditor's Report and Consolidated Financial 

Statements -------------------------------------------------------- P.22 

Attachment 5: Comparison Table of the Articles of Incorporation Before and 

After Amendments  --------------------------------------------- P.31 

Attachment 6: Comparison Table of the Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' 

Meetings Before and After Amendments -------------------- P.33 

   Eleven. Appendix 

Appendix 1: Articles of Incorporation ----------------------------------------- P.40 

Appendix 2: Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings --------------- P.45 

Appendix 3: Procedures for Election of Directors ---------------------------- P.50 

Appendix 4: Director's Shareholding Ratios and Number of Shares Held P.53 

Appendix 5: Other Explanations ------------------------------------------------ P.54 

 



 
             

YONG SHUN CHEMICAL.,LTD 

- 1 - 

 

One. Meeting Procedure 

 

 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

2025 General Shareholders' Meeting Procedures 

 

 
I. Call Meeting to Order 

 

II. Chairman's Remarks 

 

III. Report Items 

 

IV. Matters for Ratification 

 

V. Discussion Items 

 

VI. Election Matters 

 

VII. Other Motions 

 

VIII. Extraordinary Motions 

 

IX. Meeting Adjourned 
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Two. Meeting Agenda 
 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

2025 General Shareholders' Meeting Agenda 

 

Meeting Method: Physical meeting 

Date and Time: 10:30 am, June 19, 2025 (Thursday) 

Location: 4F., No. 101, Songjiang Road, Taipei City (Upgrade Business Center - Songjiang 101) 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Chairman's Remarks 

III. Report Items 

(I) The Company's Business Report for 2024. 

(II) The Audit Committee's review report on the Company's 2024 financial statements. 

(III) Report on the distribution of the remuneration to directors and employees for 2024. 

IV. Matters for Ratification 

(I) Ratification of the Company's 2024 financial statements. 

(II) Ratification of the Company's 2024 earnings distribution. 

V. Discussion Items 

(I) Proposal to amend the Company's "Articles of Incorporation." 

(II) Proposal to amend the Company's "Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings." 

VI. Election Matters 

(I) Re-election of directors (including independent directors). 

VII. Other Motions 

(I) Proposal to lift the non-compete restrictions on newly elected directors. 

VIII. Extraordinary Motions 

IX. Meeting Adjourned 
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Three. Report Items 

Proposal 1  

Subject: The Company's 2024 Business Report is hereby presented for review. 

Explanation: For the Company's 2024 Business Report, please refer to Attachment 1. 

 

Proposal 2 

Subject: The Audit Committee's review of the Company's 2024 financial statements and 

statement is hereby presented for review. 

Explanation: For the Audit Committee's review report, please refer to Attachment 2. 

 

Proposal 3 

Subject: The report on the distribution of the directors' and employees' remuneration for 2024 

is hereby presented for review. 

Explanation: The Company's Board of Directors resolved to distribute directors' remuneration in 

the amount of NT$243,281 and employees' remuneration in the amount of 

NT$161,233 for 2024. The above-mentioned amounts will be paid entirely in cash, 

and the resolved figures are consistent with the Company's recognized expense 

amounts for 2024. 

 

Four. Matters for Ratification 

Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board) 

Subject:  Proposal for the approval of the Company's 2024 financial statements is hereby 

submitted for ratification. 

Explanation: I. The Board of Directors prepared and presented the Company's 2024 parent 

company only financial statements and consolidated financial statements, 

which were audited by Kuo, Nai-Hua and Weng, Po-Jen of Deloitte Taiwan. 

The aforementioned financial statements, along with the Business Report and 

the earnings distribution proposal, were submitted to the Audit Committee for 

review, and a review report has been issued accordingly. 

         II. Please refer to Attachment 1 for the Business Report, Attachment 3 for the 

Parent Company Only Financial Statements, and Attachment 4 for the 

Consolidated Financial Statements.         

Resolution: 

Proposal 2 (Proposed by the Board) 

Subject:  Proposal for the approval of the Company's 2024 earnings distribution is 

hereby submitted for ratification. 

Explanation: I. The Company's Board of Directors has prepared the 2024 earnings distribution 

proposal in accordance with the Company Act and the Company's Articles of 

Incorporation, as outlined in the following table. 

         II. The Company's net income after tax for 2024 amounts to NT$5,814,265. In 

accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation, NT$1,461,832 has 

been appropriated as legal reserve. Including the adjusted unappropriated 

earnings from the beginning of the period totaling NT$57,943,987.88, the 

distributable earnings at year-end amount to NT$62,296,420.88. It is proposed 

to distribute NT$30,528,000 in shareholder dividends. A cash dividend of 
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NT$0.5 per share is to be distributed. The amount of cash dividends shall be 

calculated to the nearest NT$1; fractional shares less than NT$1 will be 

disregarded. Any remainder from such rounding may be subscribed by a 

specific person as authorized by the Chairman. 

         III. Upon approval by the shareholders' meeting, the Board of Directors shall be 

authorized to set the ex-dividend date and handle all related matters. 

 IV. In the event of any change in the Company's capital that affects the number of 

outstanding shares and thereby alters the dividend distribution ratio, it is 

proposed that the shareholders' meeting authorize the Chairman to handle all 

matters related to the adjustment of the dividend distribution ratio." 

 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

2024 Earnings Distribution Table     Unit: NTD 

Unappropriated earnings as of 

January 1, 2024 
  $49,139,931.88 

Add: remeasurement of defined 

benefit obligation 

recognized in retained 

earnings 

 
 

8,804,056.00 

2024 Adjusted unappropriated 

earnings 
 $57,943,987.88  

Add: Net income after tax for 

2024   
5,814,265.00  

Less: Appropriation of 10% of 

legal reserve 
(1,461,832.00)  

2024 Distributable earnings    $62,296,420.88  

Shareholder dividends – Cash 

dividend of NT$0.5 per share 
(30,528,000.00)  

Unappropriated retained earnings 

as of December 31, 2024 
 $31,768,420.88   

Chairman:  

Tsai, Ching-Fang 
Manager:  

Lin, Cheng-Chien 

Head of Accounting: 

Chen, Fu-Mei 

   Resolution: 
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Five. Discussion Items 

Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board) 

Subject:  Proposal to amend the Company's "Article of Incorporation" is hereby 

presented for ratification. 

Explanation: I. Pursuant to the announcement issued per Order No. Financial-Supervisory-

Securities-Corporate-1130385442 of the Financial Supervisory Commission 

dated November 8, 2024, certain provisions of the Company's "Articles of 

Incorporation" are proposed to be amended to comply with the revised 

regulations as required by the competent authority. 

         II. Comparison Table of Articles of Incorporation Before and After Amendments 

(please refer to Attachment 5)         

Resolution: 

 

Proposal 2 (Proposed by the Board) 

Subject:  Proposal to amend the Company's "Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' 

Meetings" is hereby presented for ratification. 

Explanation: I. Pursuant to the announcement issued per Letter No. Taiwan-Stock-

Governance-11200552441 of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation dated 

March 23, 2023, the Company's "Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' 

Meetings" are proposed to be amended to comply with the revised regulations 

as required by the competent authority. 

         II. Comparison Table of the Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings Before 

and After Amendments (please refer to Attachment 6). 

Resolution: 

Six. Election Matters 

Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board) 

Subject:  Re-election of directors (including independent directors) is hereby proposed 

for election. 

Explanation: I. The term of the Company's current directors (including independent directors) 

will expire on June 8, 2025. A re-election of directors (including independent 

directors) is therefore proposed at this General Shareholders' Meeting.         

          II. In accordance with the Company's Articles of Incorporation, it is proposed to 

elect nine directors (including four independent directors) with a term of three 

years, from June 19, 2025, to June 18, 2028. Re-election is permitted. 

          III. This election shall be conducted in accordance with the Company's "Procedures 

for Election of Directors." 

          IV. The list of director candidates is as follows: 

Name Shareholding 
Educational 

Background 
Professional Experience 

Lin, Cheng-

Chien 
4,205,821 

Doctoral degree 

awarded in Edinburgh 

Director, Academia Sinica 

Director, National Information 

Infrastructure Enterprise Promotion 

Association 

Lin, Tsyr-

Huan 
6,305,327 

Department of Wood 

Utilization, University 

of Washington 

Chairman, NaturalTEL Communication 

Co., Ltd. 

Chairman, Sun Yang Global Co. Ltd. 
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Name Shareholding 
Educational 

Background 
Professional Experience 

Lin, Jih-

Cheng 
27,810 

Department of 

Diplomacy, National 

Chengchi University 

Supervisor, Chun Yao Asset Management 

Co., Ltd. 

Person in Charge, Cheng Ming Land 

Administration Agency 

Lin Wu, 

Fang-Mei 
91,080 

Datong Commercial 

High School 
Director, Sun Yang Global Co. Ltd. 

Tsai, Ming-

Hung 
650,000 

Master of Science in 

Mechanical 

Engineering, 

Massachusetts 

Institute of 

Technology 

Assistant General Manager, Lungteh 

Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. 

Person in Charge of the ASGC Operation 

Team, Academia Sinica 

Founder, TernTek 

           V. The list of independent director candidates is as follows: 

Name Shareholding 
Educational 

Background 
Professional Experience 

Ting, Chi-

Ping 
0 

Master of Science in 

Information Science, 

State University of 

New York 

Deputy Director General, CyberSecurity 

Technology Institute 

CTO (Taiwan) & Assistant General Manager of 

Systems Engineering (Asia Pacific), Yahoo! 

Taiwan Holdings Limited 

Section Chief of the Planning and Evaluation 

Division, National Science Council 

Lu, Jung-

Hai 
0 

Doctor of Philosophy 

in Laws (Ph.D.), 

National Taiwan 

University 

Chairman, Star Energy Power Corporation 

Chairman, Sun Ba Power Corporation 

Committee Member of the Fair Trade 

Commission, Executive Yuan 

Council Member, Taiwan Bar Association 

Yu, Wei-

Chen 
0 

Department of 

Business 

Administration, 

National Taipei 

University of 

Technology 

Accountant, KenWill United CPAs Firm 

Accountant, First Horwath & Company CPAs 

CEO, National Federation of CPA Associations 

of ROC 

Chou, Man-

Chin 
0 

National Chung Hsing 

University 

Tax Auditor of the Audit Division, National 

Taxation Bureau of Taipei, Ministry of Finance 

Accountant, Wei Cheng CPAs Firm 

Accountant, KenWill United CPAs Firm 
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Seven. Other Motions 
Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board) 

Subject:  Proposal to lift the non-compete restrictions on newly elected directors is 

hereby presented for discussion. 

Explanation: I. To meet practical requirements, the newly elected directors of the Company for 

2025 (including independent directors) and their representatives may engage in 

business activities that fall within the scope of the Company's operations, either 

personally or on behalf of another entity, without being subject to the 

restrictions set forth in Article 209 of the Company Act. 

         II. In cases where the newly elected directors or their representatives invest in or 

manage companies engaged in the same or similar lines of business as the 

Company and serve as directors of such companies, and provided that the 

Company's interests are not compromised, this proposal seeks shareholder 

approval to lift the non-compete restrictions. The scope and details of such 

involvement will be disclosed at the Shareholders' Meeting prior to the 

discussion of this agenda item. 

Resolution: 

Eight. Extraordinary Motions 

Nine. Meeting Adjourned 
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Ten. Attachments 

Attachment 1 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 
2024 Business Report 

I. 2024 Business Report 
In 2024, the global economy faced considerable headwinds from high inflation, geopolitical 

tensions, and ongoing wars. China's continued export of oversupplied industrial products further 

intensified challenges, putting pressure on economic growth across nations. The global economic 

recovery remained sluggish, while rising geopolitical risks further dampened demand for 

petrochemical products, creating a difficult market environment. China's ongoing expansion of 

petrochemical production capacity has worsened global oversupply, leading to downward 

pressure on prices. At the same time, increasing environmental awareness and the gradual 

implementation of the global plastics treaty have brought alternative materials into focus. 

However, these alternatives continue to face challenges in terms of production costs and 

scalability. 

Despite these external challenges, Yong Shun Chemical's 2024 revenue rebounded steadily 

starting in the second quarter, driven by recovering domestic demand and the proactive efforts of 

our sales team to engage closely with clients. This marked a turnaround from the third quarter of 

2023, which was negatively impacted by aggressive price-cutting from Chinese suppliers. In 

parallel, we have actively invested in new product development. In the third quarter, we 

successfully developed an environmentally friendly, halogen-free vinyl flame-retardant marine 

resin, which is currently undergoing international certification. With evolving standards in 

domestic fire safety regulations, demand for flame-retardant resins has continued to grow, 

particularly in the shipbuilding, construction, public transportation, and even public art sectors. 

Recognizing that different industries have unique specifications for flame-retardant resins, we 

are working closely with downstream customers to obtain relevant certifications. 

(I) Business Plan Implementation Result 
In 2024, the Company reported consolidated revenue of NT$763,392 thousand, 

representing a slight decrease of 0.7% compared to NT$768,731 thousand in 2023. 

Consolidated net income after tax for 2024 was NT$5,814 thousand, down 68.36% from 

NT$18,378 thousand in 2023. Earnings per share on a consolidated basis were NT$0.10, 

representing a decline of 66.67% compared to NT$0.30 in 2023. 

(II) Budget Implementation Status                         

The Company did not disclose financial forecasts in 2024. 
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(III) Financial Income, Expenditure, and Profitability Analysis 

1. Revenue and Expenditure                        Unit: NT$ thousand 

Item\Year  2024  2023 

Net Income (loss) Before Tax 12,478   23,762   

Net Cash Inflow (outflow) From 

Operating Activities 
38,859   71,636   

Net Cash Inflows (outflows) From 

Investing Activities 
-24,624   -35,632   

Net Cash Inflow (outflow) From 

Financing Activities 
-16,648   -9,440   

Net Increase (decrease) in Cash 

and Cash Equivalents 
-2,413   26,564   

Beginning Balance of Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 
364,631   338,067   

Ending Balance of Cash and Cash 

Equivalents 
362,218   364,631   

         2. Profitability Analysis                               

Item/Year 2024 2023 

Liability to Asset Ratio 18.46% 17.12% 

Ratio of Long-term Funds to Property, 

Plants, and Equipment 298.53% 305.60% 

Current Ratio 492.64% 589.27% 

Quick Ratio 349.06% 423.30% 

Return on Assets 0.55% 1.54% 

Return on Equity 0.56% 1.74% 

Ratio of actual paid-

in capital (%) 

Operating Income 1.03% 3.21% 

Pre-tax Profit 2.04% 3.89% 

Net Profit Rate 0.76% 2.39% 

Earnings Per Share (Loss) NT$ 0.10 NT$ 0.30 

 

(IV) R&D Overview 

1. Development of unsaturated resin with high reactivity, heat resistance and impact 

strength. 

2. Development of polyester polyol resin for high-performance coatings with 

environmentally friendly water-based formulations and improved weather resistance. 

3. Development of applications of various grades of FRP finished products. 

4. Development of various grades of hot melt rubber and shoe rubber products related to 

environmental protection. 

5. Development in renewable energy and biodegradable products.  
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II. Summary of the 2025 Business Plan     
The Company primarily manufactures alkyd resins, unsaturated polyester resins, and 

acrylonitrile butadiene styrenes and related downstream derivatives. In addition, it is actively 

engaged in the development of other high-performance synthetic resin products. As part of its 

2025 business plan, the Company will continue optimizing its product portfolio with a focus 

on product applications. Efforts will be directed toward accelerating the commercialization of 

new products and business ventures in order to capture greater market value. Due to U.S.-

China trade war, the Chinese factories have tapped into emerging markets including Northeast 

Asia, Southeast Asia and India, with active development for better competitive advantages. 

Yong Shun Chemical continues to cultivate non-China markets, seeking other potential market 

opportunities to achieve more comprehensive business growth, with more diversified product 

mix. The management team will focus on enhancing brand value and growth momentum to 

achieve its operational objectives. 

(I) Business Strategies 

1. Establish an effective procurement system and raw material inventory system to ensure 

timely access to information, enabling greater flexibility in sales operations and 

responsiveness to market changes. 

2. The product portfolio will be strategically aligned toward biodegradable, compostable 

materials, emerging industries, high value-added applications, and recyclable solutions, 

in order to avoid falling into low-margin price competition within the industry and to 

pursue blue ocean market opportunities. 

3. Future R&D efforts will focus on potential sectors such as green energy, solvent-free, 

high-strength, and recyclable materials. Leveraging local R&D capabilities and an agile 

team, the Company intends to accelerate product development cycles and respond 

swiftly to customer demands. 

4. Market Structure: Explore markets in Northeast Asia, Southeast Asia, and India with 

high population density and domestic demand, in order to reduce dependence on the 

Chinese market for more comprehensive business growth. 

      (II) Projected Sales Volume and Basis for Estimation 

           The projected sales volumes for the Company's main products in 2025 are as follows: 

Main Products Unit 
Projected Sales 

Volume in 2025 

Unsaturated Polyester Resin Metric Ton 3,120 

Polyester Polyol Resin Metric Ton 7,500 

Acid Resistant Coating Metric Ton 720 

Chemical Tank Unit 20 

Hot Melt Adhesive and Shoe 

Adhesive Related Products 
Metric Ton 1,201 

(III) Important Production and Marketing Policies 

1. Improve sales channel strategy and deployment in the distribution channels, and 

enhance after-sales service. 

2. Broaden the customer base and maintain strong client relationships to increase market 

share. 

3. Leverage marketing intelligence to improve sales forecasting and mitigate risks. 

4. Continuously develop new products and key raw materials to secure a competitive 

advantage. 
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5. Evaluate automation solutions for labor-intensive production processes. 

6. Optimize production management to ensure on-time delivery and uphold the Company's 

reputation. 

7. Explore potential market opportunities and diversify the product portfolio. 

8. Prevent increases in production defect rates through rigorous quality control to meet 

customer expectations for product quality. 

9. Implement solar photovoltaic systems to promote green energy production, energy 

conservation, and carbon reduction. 

 
III. The Impact of the External Competitive Environment, the Regulatory 

Environment, and the Overall Business Environment on the Development Strategy 

of the Company in the Future 

Over the past 60 years since its founding, the Company has upheld the principles of 

integrity and steadfastly focused on its core business operations. In the face of intense global 

competition and rapidly changing markets, Yong Shun Chemical has adhered to a clear 

business philosophy while leveraging internal resource integration and strategic planning. The 

Company continues to expand both domestic and international markets, secure key raw 

materials, develop new products, invest in research and development, and enhance product 

functionalities to broaden their application scope. In response to the U.S.-led restructuring of 

global supply chains, we will strengthen the development of high value-added plastic products, 

such as heat-resistant, impact-resistant, and recyclable plastics, to enhance our 

competitiveness. We remain focused on enhancing product value rather than engaging in 

unnecessary price competition and are committed to maintaining high-quality production 

processes. Additionally, in alignment with government policies on energy conservation and 

carbon reduction, the Company will continue to install solar power generation systems to 

produce green electricity for internal use. Energy management practices are implemented in 

daily operations to achieve sustainability goals. In terms of new product development, the 

Company is committed to creating environmentally friendly products as part of its corporate 

social responsibility and to contributing to environmental sustainability. 

As the global plastics industry undergoes a critical phase of transformation, Yong Shun 

Chemical must proactively adjust its strategies, closely monitor changes in global supply 

chains, and drive innovation to meet the dual challenges of the market and environmental 

sustainability. The height, breadth and depth of Yong Shun Chemical's products meet market 

demands, providing customers with innovative products of high efficiency, in the aim to 

achieve excellent performance in the global synthetic resin market. 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Ching-Fang 

 

 

Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien 

 

 

Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Attachment 2 
 

 

 

 

 

Audit Committee's Review Report 
 

  The Board of Directors prepared and presented the Company's 2024 

Business Report, financial statements (consolidated and parent company only), 

and earnings distribution proposal, of which the financial statements 

(consolidated and parent company only) were approved by Kuo, Nai-Hua and 

Weng, Po-Jen of Deloitte Taiwan, with an audit report issued. 

 
  The Audit Committee found no inconsistency in the reports prepared by the 

Board of Directors. Presented in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities 

and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act. 

 
  To 

 

2025 General Shareholders' Meeting of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

 

 

                 Chairman of the Audit Committee: Chou, Man-Chin 

 

 

 

  

 

 

March 25, 2025 
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Attachment 3 

 

 
Independent Auditor's Report

 

To Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd.: 

 

Opinion 

  We have duly audited the individual balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the individual 

comprehensive income statement, individual statement of changes in equity and individual cash flow statement from 

January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 as well as notes to the individual financial statements (including the 

summary of significant accounting policies) of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

  In our opinion, the individual financial statements referred to above have been prepared, in all material 

respects, in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, 

and are fairly stated in terms of the individual financial position of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. as of December 

31, 2024 and 2023, and the individual financial performance and individual cash flow from January 1 to December 

31, 2024 and 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

  Certified Public Accountants conducted our audits in accordance with Regulations Governing Auditing and 

Attestation of Financial Statements using auditing principles. Our responsibilities as an auditor under the 

abovementioned standards are explained in the Responsibilities paragraph. All relevant personnel of the accounting 

firm have followed the CPA code of ethics and maintained independence from Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. when 

performing their duties. We believe that the evidence obtained provides an adequate and appropriate basis for our 

opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

  Key audit matters are matters that we considered to be the most important, based on professional judgment, 

when auditing the 2024 individual financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. These issues were 

addressed when we audited and formed our opinions on the parent company only financial statements. Therefore, 

we do not provide opinions separately for individual matters. 

  The key audit items of the individual financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. for 2024 are as 

follows: 

Key audit matter: Authenticity of sales, revenue and shipment to specific customers 

  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. are mainly engaged in the design, development, and manufacturing of resin 

products. Since changes in the major customers have a significant impact on the financial statements, and sales 

revenue is inherently subject to a high degree of risk, we have identified customers meeting specific criteria, and 

assessed the authenticity of the sales revenue transactions for these customers as a key audit matter. For the 

accounting policies and the information disclosed related to the revenue recognition, please refer to Notes 4 and 21 

to the parent company only financial statements. 

  In response to the above important matters, the main audit procedures implemented by the CPAs are as follows: 

 1. Understanding and testing the revenue recognition of a specific sales target is critical to the design and 

execution of internal control. 

 2. For the aforementioned specific sales target revenue details, select the sample to check the relevant 

supporting documents and test the collection status to confirm that the sales transaction actually occurred. 

 3. We review whether material sales returns and discounts have occurred after the balance sheet date, in order to 

confirm whether there is material misstatement in the revenue of specific sales targets. 
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Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Parent Company Only 

Financial Statements 

  Responsibilities of the management were to prepare and ensure fair presentation of the parent company only 

financial statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities 

Issuers and to exercise proper internal control practices that are relevant to the preparation of the parent company 

only financial statements so that the parent company only financial statements are free of material misstatements, 

whether caused by fraud or error. 

  The management’s responsibilities when preparing the parent company only financial statements also involved: 

assessing the ability of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. to operate, disclose information, and account for transactions 

as an ongoing concern unless the management intends to liquidate or cease business operations, or is compelled to 

do so with no alternative solution. 

  The governance units (including the Audit Committee) of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. are responsible for 

overseeing the financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

  The purposes of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance of whether the parent company only financial 

statements were prone to material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error, and to issue a report of our audit 

opinions. We considered assurance to be reasonable only if it is highly credible. However, audit tasks conducted in 

accordance with auditing principles do not necessarily guarantee detection of all material misstatements within the 

parent company only financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are 

considered material if the individual amount or aggregate total is reasonably expected to affect economic decisions 

of the financial statement user. 

  When conducting audits in accordance with auditing principles, we exercised judgments and raised doubts as 

deemed professionally appropriate. We also performed the following tasks as an auditor: 

 1. Identifying and assessing risk of material misstatement within the parent company only financial statements 

that are attributed to fraud or error; designing and executing appropriate response measures for the identified 

risks; and obtaining adequate and appropriate audit evidence to support audit opinions. Fraud may involve 

conspiracy, forgery, intentional omission, untruthful declaration, or breach of internal controls, and our audit 

did not find any material misstatement where the risk of fraud is greater than the risk of error. 

 2. Obtaining necessary understanding of internal controls relevant to audit and designing audit procedures that 

are appropriate under the prevailing circumstances, but not for the purpose of providing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of internal control system of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 3. Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management, and the rationality of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures. 

 4. Forming conclusions regarding the appropriateness of management’s decision to account for the business as 

an ongoing concern, and whether there are doubts or uncertainties about the ability of Yong Shun Chemical 

Co., Ltd. to continue operating, based on the audit evidence obtained. We are bound to remind parent 

company only financial statement users to pay attention to relevant disclosures in the notes of statements 

within our audit report if material uncertainties exist in regards to the aforementioned events or 

circumstances, and amend audit opinions when the disclosures are no longer appropriate. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the audit report. However, future events or change of 

circumstances may still render Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. no longer capable of continuing operations. 

 5. Assessing the overall presentation, structure, and contents of the parent company only financial statements 

(including related footnotes), and whether certain transactions and events are presented appropriately in the 

parent company only financial statements. 

 6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within Yong 

Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. to express an opinion on the parent company only financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and execution of the Company’s audits, and for forming an audit 

opinion of the Company. 

  We have communicated with the governance body about the scope, timing, and significant findings (including 

significant defects in internal controls identified during the audit) of our audit. 
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We have also provided the governance body with a declaration of independence stating that all relevant personnel of 

the accounting firm have complied with the CPA code of ethics, and communicated with the governance body on all 

matters that may affect the auditor’s independence (including relevant protection measures). 

  We have identified the key audit matters after communicating with the governance body regarding the parent 

company only financial statements from the year ended December 31, 2024 of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. These 

issues have been addressed in our audit report except for: 1. Certain topics that are prohibited by law from disclosing 

to the public; or 2. Under extreme circumstances, topics that we decide not to communicate in the audit report 

because they may cause higher negative effects than the benefits they bring to public interest. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deloitte Taiwan 

CPA Weng, Po-Jen 
  

CPA Kuo, Nai-Hua 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Parent Company Only Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023 

Code  Asset  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current assets         
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 27)    $ 338,067     29    $ 350,423     30 

1110  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current (Notes 7 and 

27) 
 

   224     -     -     - 

1136  Financial assets measured at amortized costs - current (Notes 8, 9 and 27)     109,019     9     99,000     8 

1150  Net notes receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     30,219     3     37,185     3 

1160  Notes receivable - related parties (Notes 10, 21, 27 and 28)     16,816     1     16,330     1 

1170  Net accounts receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     106,535     9     89,415     8 

1180  Accounts receivable - related parties (Notes 10, 21, 27 and 28)     6,443     1     2,661     - 

130X  Inventory (Note 11)     156,247     13     158,267     13 

1410  Prepayments     2,264     -     2,302     - 

1476  Income tax assets of the period (Note 23)     121     -     8,494     1 

1479  Other current assets - others (Note 15)     1,312     -     545     - 

11XX  Total current assets     767,267     65     764,622     64 

                       

  Non-current assets         

1550  Investment by the equity method (Note 12)     46,266     4     60,246     5 

1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 13, 25 and 29)     347,604     29     343,016     29 

1780  Intangible assets     940     -     1,272     - 

1840  Deferred income tax assets - non-current (Note 23)     16,802     1     17,947     2 

1920  Refundable deposits (Note 27)     210     -     210     - 

1975  Net defined benefit assets - non-current (Note 19)     6,359     1     -     - 

1990  Other non-current assets - others     3,427     -     405     - 

15XX  Total non-current assets     421,608     35     423,096     36 

                       

1XXX  Total assets    $ 1,188,875     100    $ 1,187,718     100 

           

Code  Liabilities and equity         

  Current liabilities         

2110  Short-term notes payable (Notes 16, 25 and 27)    $ 44,338     4    $ 32,130     3 

2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 7 and 27)     -     -     1,241     - 

2130  Contractual liabilities - current (Note 21)     1,626     -     114     - 

2150  Notes payable (Notes 17 and 27)     3,170     -     3,797     - 

2170  Accounts payable (Notes 17 and 27)     21,996     2     19,847     2 

2219  Other payables (Notes 18, 25 and 27)     28,269     3     22,865     2 

2230  Income tax liabilities of the period (Note 23)     2,475     -     -     - 

2399  Other current liabilities     311     -     355     - 

21XX  Total current liabilities     102,185     9     80,349     7 

                       

  Non-current liabilities         

2570  Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 23)     48,485     4     47,041     4 

2640  Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Note 19)     -     -     6,213     - 

25XX  Total non-current liabilities     48,485     4     53,254     4 

                       

2XXX    Total liabilities     150,670     13     133,603     11 

                       

  Equity (Note 20)         

  Share capital         

3110  Common stock     610,560     51     610,560     51 

3200  Capital surplus     53,309     4     53,309     5 

  Retained earnings         

3310  Legal reserve     212,550     18     210,483     18 

3320  Special reserve     98,028     8     98,028     8 

3350  Undistributed retained earnings     63,758     6     81,735     7 

3300  Total retained earnings     374,336     32     390,246     33 

3XXX  Total equity     1,038,205     87     1,054,115     89 

                       

  Total liabilities and equity    $ 1,188,875     100    $ 1,187,718     100 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Parent Company Only Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands, except earnings (losses) per share which is in NTD 

 

    2024  2023 

Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

4000  Operating revenue (Notes 21 and 

28) 

 

  $ 695,542     100    $ 650,092     100 

                       

5000  Operating costs (Notes 11 and 22)   (  599,868 )   (  86 )   (  557,202 )   (  86 ) 

                       

5900  Operating margin     95,674     14     92,890     14 

                       

5910  Unrealized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 

ventures 

 

 (  420 )     -   (  79 )     - 

                       

5920  Realized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 

ventures 

 

   79     -     6     - 

                       

5950  Realized gross profit from 

operations 

 

   95,333     14     92,817     14 

                       

  Operating expenses (Note 22)         

6100  Selling expenses   (  28,349 )   (  4 )   (  27,181 )   (  4 ) 

6200  Administrative expenses   (  34,895 )   (  5 )   (  36,980 )   (  6 ) 

6300  Research and development 

expenses 

 

 (  7,178 )   (  1 )   (  5,568 )   (  1 ) 

6450  Expected credit reversal gain 

(impairment loss) 

 

   879     -   (  1,598 )     - 

6000  Total operating expenses   (  69,543 )   (  10 )   (  71,327 )   (  11 ) 

                       

6900  Operating income     25,790     4     21,490     3 

                       

  Non-operating income and expenses 

(Notes 22, 28 and 31) 

 

       

7100  Interest income     5,279     1     4,373     1 

7010  Other income     133     -     116     - 

7020  Other gains and losses     1,642     -     562     - 

7070  Share of gains or losses of 

subsidiaries, affiliated 

enterprises and joint 

ventures by the equity 

method 

 

 (  23,639 )   (  4 )   (  2,239 )     - 

7050  Finance costs   (  69 )     -   (  41 )     - 

7000  Total non-operating 

income and expenses 

 

 (  16,654 )   (  3 )     2,771     1 
 

(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 

 

    2024  2023 

Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

7900  Net income before tax    $ 9,136     1    $ 24,261     4 

                       

7950  Income tax expense (Note 23)   (  3,322 )     -   (  5,883 )   (  1 ) 

                       

8200  Net profit for the year     5,814     1     18,378     3 

                       

  Other comprehensive income (Notes 

19 and 23) 

 

       

  Items not reclassified into 

profit or loss: 

 

       

8311  Remeasurement of 

defined benefit 

obligation 

 

   11,005     1     2,857     - 

8341  Income tax related to 

items not reclassified 

 

 (  2,201 )     -   (  571 )     - 

8310       8,804     1     2,286     - 

8300  Other comprehensive 

income of the period 

(net after tax) 

 

   8,804     1     2,286     - 

                       

8500  Comprehensive income of the 

period 

 

  $ 14,618     2    $ 20,664     3 

                       

  Earnings per share (Note 24)         

9750  Basic    $ 0.10         $ 0.30      

9850  Diluted    $ 0.10         $ 0.30      
 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Parent Company Only Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    Share capital    Retained earnings   
Code    Number of shares (in 

thousands)  Amount  Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  
Undistributed retained 

earnings  Total equity 
A1  Balance on January 1, 2023     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 210,483    $ 98,028    $ 91,599    $ 1,063,979 

                                      

  Earnings distribution for 2022               

B5  Shareholders’ cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  30,528 )   (  30,528 ) 

                                      

D1  Net loss for 2023     -     -     -     -     -     18,378     18,378 

                                      

D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2023     -     -     -     -     -     2,286     2,286 

                                      

D5  Total comprehensive income of 2023     -     -     -     -     -     20,664     20,664 

                                      

Z1  Balance on December 31, 2023     61,056     610,560     53,309     210,483     98,028     81,735     1,054,115 

                                      

  Earnings distribution for 2023               

B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     2,067     -   (  2,067 )     - 

B5  Shareholders’ cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  30,528 )   (  30,528 ) 

                                      

D1  Net profit for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     5,814     5,814 

                                      

D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2024     -     -     -     -     -     8,804     8,804 

                                      

D5  Total comprehensive income of 2024     -     -     -     -     -     14,618     14,618 

                                      

Z1  Balance on December 31, 2024     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 212,550    $ 98,028    $ 63,758    $ 1,038,205 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 

 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Parent Company Only Statement of Cash Flow 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flow from operating activities     
A10000  Net income before tax    $ 9,136    $ 24,261 

A20010  Income, expenses and losses:     

A20100  Depreciation expenses     7,752     7,230 

A20200  Amortization expenses     332     93 

A20300  Expected credit (reversal gain) 

impairment loss  
 

 (  879 )     1,598 

A20400  Net loss of financial assets and 

liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss 

 

 (  1,465 )     897 

A20900  Finance costs     69     41 

A22400  Share of gains or losses of subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 

ventures by the equity method 

 

   23,639     2,239 

A21200  Interest income   (  5,279 )   (  4,373 ) 

A22500  Gain on disposal of property, plant, and 

equipment 
 

 (  192 )   (  40 ) 

A22900  Inventory scrapping loss     698     622 

A23700  Recovery gain on decline in value of 

inventories 
 

   -   (  18,085 ) 

A23900  Unrealized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 

ventures 

 

   420     79 

A24000  Realized gains from subsidiaries, 

affiliated enterprises and joint 

ventures 

 

 (  79 )   (  6 ) 

A29900  Amortization of prepayments     218     - 

A30000  Net change of operating assets and liabilities     

A31130  Notes receivable     6,480     13,511 

A31150  Accounts receivable   (  20,023 )   (  2,470 ) 

A31200  Inventory     1,207     39,052 

A31230  Prepayments     38   (  309 ) 

A31240  Other current assets   (  761 )   (  450 ) 

A32125  Contract liabilities - current     1,512   (  5,979 ) 

A32130  Notes payable   (  627 )     405 

A32150  Accounts payable     2,149   (  3,159 ) 

A32180  Other payables     2,800     1,666 

A32230  Other current liabilities   (  44 )     45 

A32240  Net defined benefit liabilities   (  1,567 )   (  1,396 ) 

A33000  Cash from operations     25,534     55,472 

A33100  Interest received     5,273     4,360 

 

(continued on the next page) 
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Code    2024  2023 
A33300  Interest paid   ( $ 69 )   ( $ 41 ) 

A33500  Income tax received (paid)     7,914   (  720 ) 

AAAA  Net cash inflow from operating 

activities 
 

   38,652     59,071 

             

  Cash flow from investment activities     

B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (  9,648 )   (  23,217 ) 

B06500  Acquisition of financial assets at amortized 

cost 
 

 (  10,019 )     - 

B04500  Acquisition of intangible assets     -   (  1,327 ) 

B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 
 

   219     40 

B01800  Acquisition of investment by the equity 

method 
 

 (  10,000 )     - 

B06700  Increase in other non-current assets   (  3,240 )   (  405 ) 

BBBB  Net cash outflow from investments   (  32,688 )   (  24,909 ) 

             

  Cash flow from financial activities     

C00600  Increase in short-term notes payable     12,208     19,416 

C04500  Dividend payment   (  30,528 )   (  30,528 ) 

CCCC  Net cash outflow from financial 

activities 
 

 (  18,320 )   (  11,112 ) 

             

EEEE  (Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents   (  12,356 )     23,050 

             

E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

year 
 

   350,423     327,373 

             

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    $ 338,067    $ 350,423 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Attachment 4 

 
Independent Auditor's Report 

 

To Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd.: 

 

Opinion 

  We have duly audited the consolidated balance sheet of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries for 

December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the consolidated comprehensive income statement, consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement from January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023 as well as 

notes to the consolidated financial statements (including the summary of material accounting policies). 

  In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above have been prepared, in all material 

respects, in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, 

and are fairly stated in terms of the consolidated financial position of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. as of December 

31, 2024 and 2023, and the consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flow from January 1 to 

December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

  Certified Public Accountants conducted our audits in accordance with Regulations Governing Auditing and 

Attestation of Financial Statements using auditing principles. Our responsibilities as an auditor under the 

abovementioned standards are explained in the Responsibilities paragraph. All relevant personnel of the accounting 

firm have followed the CPA code of ethics and maintained independence from Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and 

its subsidiaries when performing their duties. We believe that the evidence obtained provides an adequate and 

appropriate basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

  Key audit matters are matters that we considered to be the most important, based on professional judgment, 

when auditing the 2024 consolidated financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 

These issues were addressed when we audited and formed our opinions on the consolidated financial statements. 

Therefore, we do not provide opinions separately for individual matters. 

  The key audit items of the consolidated financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 

subsidiaries for 2024 are as follows: 

Key audit matter: Authenticity of sales, revenue and shipment to specific customers 

  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the design, development, and 

manufacturing of resin products. Since changes in the major customers have a significant impact on the financial 

statements, and sales revenue is inherently subject to a high degree of risk, we have identified customers meeting 

specific criteria, and assessed the authenticity of the sales revenue transactions for these customers as a key audit 

matter. Please refer to Notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements. 

  In response to the above important matters, the main audit procedures implemented by the CPAs are as follows:  

 1. Understanding and testing the revenue recognition of a specific sales target is critical to the design and 

execution of internal control. 

 2. For the aforementioned specific sales target revenue details, select the sample to check the relevant 

supporting documents and test the collection status to confirm that the sales transaction actually occurred. 

 3. We review whether material sales returns and discounts have occurred after the balance sheet date, in order to 

confirm whether there is material misstatement in the revenue of specific sales targets. 
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Other Items 

  Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. has prepared the parent company’s financial statements for the years 2024 and 

2023, and we have issued an audit report with a unmodifiedopinion for reference. 

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 

Statements 

  The responsibility of management is to prepare consolidated financial statements that fairly present the 

financial position of the Company in accordance with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial 

Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, 

Interpretations and Interpretations issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and to maintain necessary 

internal controls relevant to the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

  In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management's responsibility also includes assessing Yong 

Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries' ability to continue operating, the disclosure of related matters, and the 

adoption of the basis of accounting, unless management intends to liquidate Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 

subsidiaries or to cease operations, or there is no practical alternative to liquidation or cessation of operations. 

  The governance units (including the Audit Committee) of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries 

are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

  The purposes of our audit were to obtain reasonable assurance of whether the consolidated financial statements 

were prone to material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error, and to issue a report of our audit opinions. 

We considered assurance to be reasonable only if it is highly credible. However, audit tasks conducted in 

accordance with auditing principles do not necessarily guarantee detection of all material misstatements within the 

consolidated financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered 

material if the individual amount or aggregate total is reasonably expected to affect economic decisions of the 

financial statement user. 

  When conducting audits in accordance with auditing principles, we exercised judgments and raised doubts as 

deemed professionally appropriate. We also performed the following tasks as an auditor: 

 1. Identifying and assessing risk of material misstatement within the consolidated financial statements that are 

attributed to fraud or error; designing and executing appropriate response measures for the identified risks; 

and obtaining adequate and appropriate audit evidence to support audit opinions. Fraud may involve 

conspiracy, forgery, intentional omission, untruthful declaration, or breach of internal controls, and our audit 

did not find any material misstatement where the risk of fraud is greater than the risk of error. 

 2. Obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to our audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries' internal controls. 

 3. Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the management, and the rationality of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures. 

 4. Based on the evidence obtained, making a conclusion on the appropriateness of the management's adoption 

of the basis of accounting and whether there is any material uncertainty about the events or circumstances 

that may cast significant doubt on the ability of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries to 

continue operating. We are bound to remind consolidated financial statement users to pay attention to 

relevant disclosures in the notes of statements within our audit report if material uncertainties exist in regards 

to the aforementioned events or circumstances, and amend audit opinions when the disclosures are no longer 

appropriate. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the audit report. 

However, future events or circumstances may cause Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries to 

cease to have the ability to continue operating. 

 5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements (including the 

notes in the statements), and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 6. Obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence of financial information and entities within the group, and 

expressing opinions on consolidated financial statements. Our responsibilities as an auditor are to instruct, 

supervise, and execute audits and form audit opinions on the Company. 

  We have communicated with the governance body about the scope, timing, and significant findings (including 

significant defects in internal controls identified during the audit) of our audit. 

  We have also provided the governance body with a declaration of independence stating that all relevant 

personnel of the accounting firm have complied with the CPA code of ethics, and communicated with the 

governance body on all matters that may affect the auditor's independence (including relevant protection measures). 

  From the matters communicated with the governance unit, we decided on the key audit items for the audit of 

the annual consolidated financial statements of Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries for 2024. These 

issues have been addressed in our audit report except for: 1. Certain topics that are prohibited by law from disclosing 
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to the public; or 2. Under extreme circumstances, topics that we decide not to communicate in the audit report 

because they may cause higher negative effects than the benefits they bring to public interest. 

 

 

 

 

 

Deloitte Taiwan 

CPA Weng, Po-Jen 
  

CPA Kuo, Nai-Hua 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    December 31, 2024  December 31, 2023 

Code  Asset  Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Current assets         

1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 27)    $ 362,218     28    $ 364,631     29 

1110  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current (Notes 7 

and 27) 

 

   243     -     -     - 

1136  Financial assets measured at amortized costs - current (Notes 8, 9 and 

27) 

 

   109,019     9     99,000     8 

1150  Net notes receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     32,451     2     38,620     3 

1170  Net accounts receivable (Notes 10, 21 and 27)     110,110     9     107,461     8 

130X  Inventory (Note 11)     226,630     18     218,149     17 

1410  Prepayments     2,850     -     2,937     - 

1220  Income tax assets of the period (Note 23)     123     -     8,494     1 

1479  Other current assets (Notes 15 and 27)     1,827     -     995     - 

11XX  Total current assets     845,471     66     840,287     66 

                       

  Non-current assets         

1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 13, 25 and 29)     369,000     29     369,543     29 

1755  Right-of-use assets (Note 14)     18,741     2     26,684     2 

1780  Intangible assets     940     -     1,272     - 

1840  Deferred income tax assets (Note 23)     27,248     2     31,696     3 

1920  Refundable deposits (Note 27)     2,022     -     2,022     - 

1975  Net defined benefit assets - non-current (Note 19)     6,359     1     -     - 

1990  Other non-current assets - others     3,427     -     405     - 

15XX  Total non-current assets     427,737     34     431,622     34 

                       

1XXX  Total assets    $ 1,273,208     100    $ 1,271,909     100 

           

Code  Liabilities and equity         

  Current liabilities         

2100  Short-term borrowing (Notes 16, 25 and 27)    $ 52,000     4    $ 43,000     3 

2110  Short-term notes payable (Notes 16, 25 and 27)     44,338     3     32,130     3 

2120  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - current (Notes 7 

and 27) 

 

   -     -     1,280     - 

2130  Contractual liabilities - current (Note 21)     2,194     -     917     - 

2150  Notes payable (Notes 17 and 27)     3,976     -     5,618     - 

2170  Accounts payable (Notes 17 and 27)     24,386     2     22,631     2 

2219  Other payables (Notes 18 and 27)     34,726     3     29,571     2 

2230  Income tax liabilities of the period (Note 23)     2,475     -     -     - 

2280  Lease liabilities - current (Notes 14, 25 and 27)     7,082     1     6,964     1 

2399  Other current liabilities     443     -     488     - 

21XX  Total current liabilities     171,620     13     142,599     11 

                       

  Non-current liabilities         

2570  Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 23)     48,577     4     47,094     4 

2580  Lease liabilities - non-current (Notes 14, 25 and 27)     10,179     1     17,261     1 

2550  Liability reserves - non-current (Note 14)     4,627     -     4,627     - 

2640  Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Note 19)     -     -     6,213     1 

25XX  Total non-current liabilities     63,383     5     75,195     6 

                       

2XXX    Total liabilities     235,003     18     217,794     17 

                       

  Owner’s equity attributable to owner of the Company (Note 20)         

  Share capital         

3110  Common stock     610,560     48     610,560     48 

3200  Capital surplus     53,309     4     53,309     4 

  Retained earnings         

3310  Legal reserve     212,550     17     210,483     17 

3320  Special reserve     98,028     8     98,028     8 

3350  Undistributed retained earnings     63,758     5     81,735     6 

3300  Total retained earnings     374,336     30     390,246     31 

                       

3XXX  Total equity     1,038,205     82     1,054,115     83 

                       

  Total liabilities and equity    $ 1,273,208     100    $ 1,271,909     100 

 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands, except earnings (losses) per share which is in NTD 

 

    2024  2023 
Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

4000  Operating revenue (Note 21)    $ 763,392     100    $ 768,731     100 

                       

5000  Operating costs (Notes 11 and 22)   (  677,338 )   (  89 )   (  667,787 )   (  87 ) 

                       

5900  Operating margin     86,054     11     100,944     13 

                       

  Operating expenses (Note 22)         

6100  Selling expenses   (  34,563 )   (  4 )   (  33,747 )   (  4 ) 

6200  Administrative expenses   (  38,905 )   (  5 )   (  40,619 )   (  5 ) 

6300  Research and development 

expenses 
 

 (  7,178 )   (  1 )   (  5,568 )   (  1 ) 

6450  Expected credit recovery gain 

(impairment loss) 
 

   879     -   (  1,405 )     - 

6000  Total operating 

expenses 
 

 (  79,767 )   (  10 )   (  81,339 )   (  10 ) 

                       

6900  Operating net income     6,287     1     19,605     3 

                       

  Non-operating income and expenses 

(Notes 22 and 31) 
 

       

7100  Interest income     5,314     1     4,431     - 

7010  Other income     233     -     95     - 

7020  Other gains and losses     2,188     -     1,091     - 

7050  Finance costs   (  1,544 )     -   (  1,460 )     - 

7000  Total non-operating 

income and expenses 
 

   6,191     1     4,157     - 

                       

7900  Net profit before tax     12,478     2     23,762     3 

                       

7950  Income tax expense (Note 23)   (  6,664 )   (  1 )   (  5,384 )   (  1 ) 

                       

8200  Net profit for the year     5,814     1     18,378     2 

 

(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 

 

    2024  2023 
Code    Amount  %  Amount  % 

  Other comprehensive income (Notes 

19, 20 and 23) 
 
       

  Items not reclassified into 

profit or loss: 
 
       

8311  Remeasurement of 

defined benefit 

obligation 

 

  $ 11,005     1    $ 2,857     - 

8341  Income tax related to 

items not reclassified 
 

 (  2,201 )     -   (  571 )     - 

8310       8,804     1     2,286     - 

8300  Other comprehensive 

income of the period 

(net after tax) 

 

   8,804     1     2,286     - 

                       

8500  Comprehensive income of the 

period 
 

  $ 14,618     2    $ 20,664     3 

                       

  Net profit attributable to         

8610  Owner of the Company    $ 5,814     1    $ 18,378     2 

8600      $ 5,814     1    $ 18,378     2 

                       

  Consolidated profit or loss 

attributable to 
 

       

8710  Owner of the Company    $ 14,618     2    $ 20,664     3 

8700      $ 14,618     2    $ 20,664     3 

                       

  Earnings per share (Note 24)         

9750  Basic    $ 0.10         $ 0.30      

9850  Diluted    $ 0.10         $ 0.30      

 

 

 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 

 

 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

    Share capital    Retained earnings   

Code    Number of shares 

(thousand)  Amount  Capital surplus  Legal reserve  Special reserve  

Undistributed retained 

earnings  Total equity 

A1  Balance on January 1, 2023     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 210,483    $ 98,028    $ 91,599    $ 1,063,979 

                                      

  Earnings distribution for 2022               

B5  Cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  30,528 )   (  30,528 ) 

                                      

D1  Net profit for 2023     -     -     -     -     -     18,378     18,378 

                                      

D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2023     -     -     -     -     -     2,286     2,286 

                                      

D5  Total comprehensive income of 2023     -     -     -     -     -     20,664     20,664 

                                      

Z1  Balance on December 31, 2023     61,056     610,560     53,309     210,483     98,028     81,735     1,054,115 

                                      

  Earnings distribution for 2023               

B1  Legal reserve     -     -     -     2,067     -   (  2,067 )     - 

B5  Cash dividends     -     -     -     -     -   (  30,528 )   (  30,528 ) 

                                      

D1  Net profit for 2024     -     -     -     -     -     5,814     5,814 

                                      

D3  Other after-tax comprehensive income of 2024     -     -     -     -     -     8,804     8,804 

                                      

D5  Total comprehensive income of 2024     -     -     -     -     -     14,618     14,618 

                                      

Z1  Balance on December 31, 2024     61,056    $ 610,560    $ 53,309    $ 212,550    $ 98,028    $ 63,758    $ 1,038,205 

 

 

 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 

 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flow from operating activities     

A10000  Net income before tax    $ 12,478    $ 23,762 

A20010  Income, expenses and losses     

A20100  Depreciation expenses     22,762     21,498 

A20200  Amortization expenses     332     93 

A20300  Expected credit (recovery gain) 

impairment loss 

 

 (  879 )     1,405 

A20400  Net (gain) loss of financial assets/ 

liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss 

 

 (  1,523 )     936 

A20900  Finance costs     1,544     1,460 

A21200  Interest income   (  5,314 )   (  4,431 ) 

A22500  Gain on disposal of property, plant, and 

equipment 

 

 (  192 )   (  40 ) 

A22900  Inventory scrapping loss     698     622 

A23700  Loss (recovery gain) on decline in value 

of inventories 

 

   1,359   (  16,785 ) 

A29900  Amortization of prepayments     218     - 

A30000  Net change of operating assets and liabilities     

A31130  Notes receivable     6,169   (  3,004 ) 

A31150  Accounts receivable   (  1,770 )     6,380 

A31200  Inventory   (  10,653 )     46,851 

A31230  Prepayments     87   (  94 ) 

A31240  Other current assets   (  826 )   (  530 ) 

A32125  Contractual liabilities     1,277   (  8,345 ) 

A32130  Notes payable   (  1,642 )     1,497 

A32150  Accounts payable     1,755   (  1,895 ) 

A32180  Other payables     2,551     1,093 

A32230  Other current liabilities   (  45 )     44 

A32240  Defined benefit liabilities   (  1,567 )   (  1,396 ) 

A33000  Cash from operations     26,819     69,121 

A33100  Interest received     5,308     4,418 

A33300  Interest paid   (  1,180 )   (  978 ) 

A33500  Income tax received (paid)     7,912   (  925 ) 

AAAA  Net cash inflow from operating 

activities 

 

   38,859     71,636 

             

 

(continued on the next page) 
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(continued from the previous page) 

 

Code    2024  2023 

  Cash flow from investment activities     

B02700  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   ( $ 11,584 )   ( $ 33,940 ) 

B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment 

 

   219     40 

B04500  Acquisition of intangible assets     -   (  1,327 ) 

B06700  Increase in other non-current assets   (  3,240 )   (  405 ) 

B06500  Acquisition of financial assets at amortized 

cost 

 

 (  10,019 )     - 

BBBB  Net cash outflow from investments   (  24,624 )   (  35,632 ) 

             

  Cash flow from financial activities     

C00100  Increase in short-term borrowings     9,000     9,000 

C00600  Increase in short-term notes payable     12,208     19,416 

C04020  Repayment of lease liability principal   (  7,328 )   (  7,328 ) 

C04500  Cash dividend payment   (  30,528 )   (  30,528 ) 

CCCC  Net cash outflow from financial 

activities 

 

 (  16,648 )   (  9,440 ) 

             

EEEE  (Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents   (  2,413 )     26,564 

             

E00100  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

year 

 

   364,631     338,067 

             

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    $ 362,218    $ 364,631 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The attached notes are part of the consolidated financial report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman: Tsai, Cheng-Fung Manager: Lin, Cheng-Chien Head of Accounting: Chen, Fu-Mei 
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Attachment 5 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Comparison Table of the Articles of Incorporation Before and 

After Amendments 

After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

Article 20 

The Company shall have between 

seven and eleven directors. The 

election of directors shall adopt a 

candidate nomination system, and 

shareholders shall elect directors 

from the list of nominated 

candidates. Directors shall serve a 

term of three years and may be re-

elected. Among the directors, the 

number of independent directors 

shall not be fewer than three and 

shall not be less than one-third of 

the total number of directors. 

(Remaining content omitted) 

Article 20 

The Company shall have between 

seven and eleven directors. The 

election of directors shall adopt a 

candidate nomination system, and 

shareholders shall elect directors 

from the list of nominated 

candidates. Directors shall serve a 

term of three years and may be re-

elected. Among the directors, the 

number of independent directors 

shall not be fewer than three and 

shall not be less than one-fifth of 

the total number of directors. 

(Remaining content omitted) 

 

Amended in 

compliance with 

the Corporate 

Governance 

Best Practice 

Principles for 

TWSE/TPEx 

Listed 

Companies. 

Article 34 

If the Company has a profit in the 

year, it shall first set aside 1% to 

3% as remuneration to employees 

and no more than 4% as 

remuneration to directors. 

Of the total amount allocated for 

employee compensation in the 

preceding paragraph, no less than 

60% shall be distributed to non-

executive employees. 

However, if the Company has 

accumulated losses (including 

adjustments to unappropriated 

earnings), such losses shall first be 

offset before any allocation of 

employee compensation or 

directors' remuneration is made. 

The remaining balance, if any, 

shall then be allocated in 

accordance with the ratios specified 

in the first paragraph. Directors' 

remuneration shall be distributed in 

cash, while employee 

Article 34 

If the Company has a profit in the 

year, it shall first set aside 1% to 

3% as remuneration to employees 

and no more than 4% as 

remuneration to directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

However, if the Company has 

accumulated losses (including 

adjustments to unappropriated 

earnings), such losses shall first be 

offset before any allocation of 

employee compensation or 

directors' remuneration is made. 

The remaining balance, if any, 

shall then be allocated in 

accordance with the ratios specified 

in the preceding paragraph. 

Directors' remuneration shall be 

distributed in cash, while employee 

Pursuant to the 

announcement 

issued per Order 

No. Financial-

Supervisory-

Securities-

Corporate-

1130385442 of 

the Financial 

Supervisory 

Commission 

dated November 

8, 2024, which 

requires all 

TWSE/TPEx 

listed companies 

to specify in 

their Articles of 

Incorporation a 

certain 

percentage of 
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After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

compensation may be distributed in 

the form of shares or cash. Such 

allocations shall be resolved by the 

Board of Directors with the 

attendance of at least two-thirds of 

the directors and the approval of a 

majority of the attending directors, 

and shall be reported to the 

shareholders' meeting. 

compensation may be distributed in 

the form of shares or cash. Such 

allocations shall be resolved by the 

Board of Directors with the 

attendance of at least two-thirds of 

the directors and the approval of a 

majority of the attending directors, 

and shall be reported to the 

shareholders' meeting. 

annual earnings 

to be allocated 

for adjusting the 

remuneration to 

non-executive 

employees or... 

Certain 

provisions have 

been newly 

added, and 

textual revisions 

have been made 

accordingly. 

Article 37 

These Articles of Incorporation 

were enacted on July 22, 1965. 

The First Amendment was made on 

July 20, 1967. 

The Second through the Twenty-

eighth Amendments are omitted. 

The Twenty-ninth Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2020. 
The Thirtieth Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2022. 

The Thirty-first Amendment was 

made on June 19, 2025. 

Article 37 

These Articles of Incorporation 

were enacted on July 22, 1965. 

The First Amendment was made on 

July 20, 1967. 

The Second through the Twenty-

eighth Amendments are omitted. 

The Twenty-ninth Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2020. 

The Thirtieth Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2022. 

The date of the 

Thirty-first 

Amendment was 

added due to 

revisions made 

to the Articles of 

Incorporation 
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Attachment 6 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings - Comparison Table of Amended Provisions 

After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

Article 3 

Unless otherwise provided by 

laws or regulations, shareholders' 

meetings of the Company shall be 

convened by the Board of 

Directors. 

Changes to how the Company 

convenes its shareholders' 

meeting shall be resolved by the 

Board of Directors, and shall be 

made no later than the mailing of 

the shareholders' meeting notice. 

The Company shall... 

(omitted)... shall also be 

displayed at the Company and the 

professional shareholder services 

agent designated thereby. 

The Company shall make the 

meeting agenda and supplemental 

meeting materials in the 

preceding paragraph available to 

shareholders for review in the 

following manner on the date of 

the shareholders' meeting: 

I. For physical shareholders' 

meetings, to be distributed on-site 

at the meeting. 

II. For hybrid shareholders' 

meetings, to be distributed on-site 

at the meeting and shared on the 

virtual meeting platform. 

III. For virtual-only 

shareholders' meetings, electronic 

files shall be shared on the virtual 

meeting platform. 

(Remaining content omitted). 

 

Article 5 (Principles for the 

Venue and Time of 

Shareholders' Meetings) 

Paragraph 1 is omitted. 

The restrictions on the place of 

the meeting stated in the 

preceding paragraph shall not 

apply when the Company 

convenes a virtual-only 

Article 3 

Unless otherwise provided by 

laws or regulations, shareholders’ 

meetings of the Company shall be 

convened by the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company shall... (omitted)... 

shall also be displayed at the 

Company and the professional 

shareholder services agent 

designated thereby and distributed 

on-site at the shareholders’ meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Remaining content omitted). 

 

Article 5 (Principles for the Venue 

and Time of Shareholders’ 

Meetings) 

Paragraph 1 is omitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

In the case where the 

Company convenes a 

shareholders’ meeting 

by means of video 

conferencing, 

shareholders may only 

participate through the 

virtual platform. To 

protect shareholder 

rights and interests, 

Paragraph 2 has been 

added to explicitly 

state that the 

convening of a virtual 

shareholders’ meeting 

must be stipulated in 

the Articles of 

Incorporation and shall 

be approved by a 

resolution of the Board 

of Directors. Such 

resolution must be 

passed by the 

attendance of at least 

two-thirds of the 

directors and with the 

consent of a majority 

of the directors present 

(i.e., a special 

resolution). 

Additional text has 

been added in 

accordance with the 

newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders’ 

meetings. 

 

 

 

 

In line with the 

inclusion of new 

provisions for 

convening virtual 

meetings, a new 
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After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

shareholders' meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

Article 6 (Preparation of 

Documents Such as the 

Sign-in Book) 

The Company shall specify in 

its shareholders' meeting notices 

the time during which attendance 

registrations for shareholders, 

solicitors, and proxies 

(hereinafter collectively referred 

to as "shareholders") will be 

accepted, the place to register for 

attendance, and other matters for 

attention. 

The time for the shareholder's 

registration referred to in the 

preceding paragraph shall be at 

least 30 minutes before the 

meeting; the registration office 

shall be clearly marked, and 

sufficient qualified personnel 

shall be sent to handle the 

registration. For virtual 

shareholders' meetings, 

shareholders may begin to 

register on the virtual meeting 

platform 30 minutes before the 

meeting starts. Shareholders 

completing registration will be 

deemed to have attended the 

shareholders' meeting in person. 

Paragraphs 3 through 6 are 

omitted. 

In the event of a virtual 

shareholders' meeting, 

shareholders wishing to attend the 

meeting online shall register with 

the Company two days before the 

meeting date. 

In the event of a virtual 

shareholders meeting, the 

Company shall upload the 

meeting agenda, annual report, 

and other meeting materials to the 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Article 6 (Preparation of Documents 

Such as the Sign-in Book) 

The Company shall specify in the 

meeting notice the time and place for 

the shareholder’s registration and 

other matters needing attention. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The time for the shareholder’s 

registration referred to in the 

preceding paragraph shall be at least 

30 minutes before the meeting; the 

registration office shall be clearly 

marked, and sufficient qualified 

personnel shall be sent to handle the 

registration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paragraphs 3 through 6 are omitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paragraph 2 has been 

added to explicitly 

state that the location 

of such meetings shall 

not be restricted. 

 

Additional text has 

been added in 

accordance with the 

newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders’ 

meetings. 
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After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

virtual meeting platform at least 

30 minutes before the meeting 

starts, and keep this information 

disclosed until the end of the 

meeting. 

Article 6-1 (Convening Virtual 

Shareholders' Meetings and 

Required Disclosures in the 

Notice of Meeting) 

To convene a virtual 

shareholders' meeting, the 

Company shall include the 

following particulars in the 

shareholders' meeting notice: 

I. How shareholders attend 

the virtual meeting and exercise 

their rights. 

II. Actions to be taken if the 

virtual meeting platform or 

participation in the virtual 

meeting is obstructed due to 

natural disasters, accidents, or 

other force majeure events. 

III. Other matters that must be 

disclosed pursuant to applicable 

laws. 

Article 8 (Retention of Audio or 

Video Recording of 

Shareholders' Meetings) 

Paragraphs 1 and 2 are omitted. 

Where a shareholders' meeting 

is held via video conferencing, 

the Company shall maintain 

records of shareholder 

registration, check-in, questions 

raised, votes cast, and the vote-

counting results. The entire 

proceedings of the virtual 

meeting shall be recorded in both 

audio and video formats 

continuously and without 

interruption. 

The information and 

audio/video recording in the 

preceding paragraph shall be 

properly kept by the Company 

during the entirety of its 

existence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Article 8 (Retention of Audio or 

Video Recording of 

Shareholders’ Meetings) 

Paragraphs 1 and 2 are omitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Given that 

shareholders may only 

participate via video 

conferencing in a 

virtual shareholders’ 

meeting, the Company 

is required to state 

relevant matters in the 

shareholders’ meeting 

notice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional text has 

been added in 

accordance with the 

newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders’ 

meetings. 
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Article 9 

Attendance at shareholders’ 

meetings shall be calculated 

based on the number of shares. 

The number of attending shares is 

calculated based on the number of 

shares represented on the sign-in 

book or sign-in cards from the 

attending shareholders or the 

shareholders' proxies, and the 

shares checked in on the virtual 

meeting platform, plus the 

number of shares of shareholders 

exercising their voting rights in 

writing or electronically. 

The chair shall call the meeting 

to order at the appointed meeting 

time and disclose information 

concerning the number of 

nonvoting shares and the number 

of shares represented by 

shareholders attending the 

meeting. 

Paragraphs 3 (omitted) 

If the quorum is not met after 

two postponements as referred to 

in the preceding paragraph, but 

the attending shareholders 

represent one third or more of the 

total number of issued shares, a 

tentative resolution may be 

adopted pursuant to Paragraph 1, 

Article 175 of the Company Act, 

and all shareholders shall be 

notified of the tentative resolution 

and another shareholders' meeting 

shall be convened within one 

month. In the event of a virtual 

shareholders' meeting, 

shareholders intending to attend 

the meeting online shall re-

register with the Company in 

accordance with Article 6. 

(Remaining content omitted) 

Article 11 (Speaking of 

Shareholders) 

Paragraphs 1 through 6 are 

omitted. 

Where a virtual shareholders' 

Article 9 

Attendance at shareholders’ 

meetings shall be calculated based 

on the number of shares. The 

number of attending shares is 

calculated based on the number of 

shares represented on the sign-in 

book or sign-in cards from the 

attending shareholders or the 

shareholders’ proxies, plus the 

number of shares of shareholders 

exercising their voting rights in 

writing or electronically. 

 

 

The chair shall call the meeting 

to order at the appointed meeting 

time 

 

 

 

 

 

Paragraphs 3 (omitted) 

If the quorum is not met after two 

postponements as referred to in the 

preceding paragraph, but the 

attending shareholders represent one 

third or more of the total number of 

issued shares, a tentative resolution 

may be adopted pursuant to 

Paragraph 1, Article 175 of the 

Company Act, and all shareholders 

shall be notified of the tentative 

resolution and another shareholders’ 

meeting shall be convened within 

one month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Remaining content omitted) 

Article 11 (Speaking of 

Shareholders) 

Paragraphs 1 through 6 are 

omitted. 

 

Additional text has been 

added in accordance with 

the newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders’ 

meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional text has been 

added in accordance with 

the newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders' 
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After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

meeting is convened, 

shareholders attending the virtual 

meeting online may raise 

questions in writing at the virtual 

meeting platform from the chair 

declaring the meeting open until 

the chair declares the meeting 

adjourned. No more than two 

questions for the same proposal 

may be raised, and each question 

shall contain no more than 200 

words. 

Article 13 

Paragraphs 1 through 4 are 

omitted. 

The voting of the motion shall 

be passed with the approval of a 

majority of the voting rights of 

the shareholders present, unless 

otherwise stipulated in the 

Company Act and the Articles of 

Association of the Company. At 

the time of a vote, for each 

proposal, the chair or a person 

designated by the chair shall first 

announce the total number of 

voting rights represented by the 

attending shareholders, after 

which shareholders shall cast 

their votes on each proposal 

accordingly. After the conclusion 

of the meeting, on the same day it 

is held, the results for each 

proposal, based on the number of 

votes for and against and the 

number of abstentions, shall be 

entered into the MOPS. 

Paragraphs 6 through 8 are 

omitted. 

When the Company convenes a 

hybrid shareholders' meeting, if 

shareholders who have registered 

to attend the meeting online 

decide to attend the physical 

shareholders' meeting in person, 

they shall revoke their 

registration two days before the 

shareholders' meeting in the same 

manner as they registered. If their 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Article 13 

Paragraphs 1 through 4 are 

omitted. 

The voting of the motion shall be 

passed with the approval of a 

majority of the voting rights of the 

shareholders present, unless 

otherwise stipulated in the Company 

Act and the Articles of Association 

of the Company. When voting, 

shareholders shall cast their ballots 

to vote for or against each proposal. 

On the day after the shareholders’ 

meeting, the results of shareholders' 

approval, opposition, and abstention 

shall be entered into the MOPS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paragraphs 6 through 8 are 

omitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional text has been 

added in accordance with 

the newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders' 

meetings. 
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After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

registration is not revoked within 

the time limit, they may only 

attend the shareholders' meeting 

online. 

In the event of a virtual 

shareholders' meeting, votes shall 

be counted at once after the chair 

announces that the voting session 

has ended, and the results of votes 

and elections shall be announced 

immediately. 

Article 16 (Public Disclosure) 

 On the day of a shareholders' 

meeting, the Company shall 

compile in the prescribed format 

a statistical statement of the 

number of shares obtained by 

solicitors through solicitation, the 

number of shares represented by 

proxies and the number of shares 

represented by shareholders 

attending the meeting by 

correspondence or electronic 

means, and shall make an express 

disclosure of the same at the 

place of the shareholders' 

meeting. In the event of a virtual 

shareholders' meeting, this 

Company shall upload the above 

meeting materials to the virtual 

meeting platform at least 30 

minutes before the meeting starts, 

and keep this information 

disclosed until the end of the 

meeting. 

During this Company's virtual 

shareholders' meeting, when the 

meeting is called to order, the 

total number of shares 

represented at the meeting shall 

be disclosed on the virtual 

meeting platform. The same shall 

apply whenever the total number 

of shares represented at the 

meeting and a new tally of votes 

is released during the meeting. 

(Remaining content omitted) 

Article 19 (Disclosure of 

Information at Virtual 
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After Amendment Before Amendment Description 

Meetings) 

In the event of a virtual 

shareholders' meeting, the 

Company shall disclose real-time 

results of votes and elections 

immediately after the end of the 

voting session on the virtual 

meeting platform according to the 

regulations, and this disclosure 

shall continue at least 15 minutes 

after the chair has announced the 

meeting adjourned. 

Article 20 (Location of the Chair 

and Secretary of Virtual-

only Shareholders Meeting) 

When the Company convenes 

a virtual-only shareholders' 

meeting, both the chair and 

secretary shall be in the same 

location, and the chair shall 

declare the address of their 

location when the meeting is 

called to order. 

Article 21 

These Rules shall come into 

force after being approved by a 

shareholders' meeting, and the 

same shall apply when they are 

amended. 

Article 22 

These Rules were established 

on June 15, 1995. 

The First Amendment was 

made on June 14, 2002. 

The Second Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2006. 

The Third Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2020. 

The Fourth Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2022. 

The Fifth Amendment was 

made on June 19, 2025. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Article 19 

These Rules shall come into force 

after being approved by a 

shareholders' meeting, and the same 

shall apply when they are amended. 

 

Article 20 

These Rules were established on 

June 15, 1995. 

The First Amendment was made 

on June 14, 2002. 

The Second Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2006. 

The Third Amendment was made 

on June 9, 2020. 

The Fourth Amendment was 

made on June 9, 2022. 

accordance with the 

newly introduced 

provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders' 

meetings. 
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provisions for holding 

virtual shareholders' 

meetings. 
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Eleven. Appendix 
Appendix 1 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Articles of Incorporation 
Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article 1 

The company is organized in accordance with the Company Act and is named Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Article 2 

The businesses of the company are as follows: 

I. Manufacturing of various paints and raw materials of synthetic resin for paints. 

II. Manufacturing and sale of multi-component resins. 

III. Manufacturing and sale of special coating resins. 

IV. Manufacturing of various Binder fixing agents for printed fabrics and various adhesives for bamboo and wood. 

V. Manufacturing of fiber auxiliaries. 

VI. Manufacturing, processing, and trading of various reinforced plastic products. 

VII. Manufacturing of auxiliary raw materials referred to in the preceding paragraphs. 

VIII. Purchase of raw materials for self-use, and import and export of finished products related to the businesses 

referred to in the preceding paragraphs. 

IX. E605010 Computer Equipment Installation. 

X. F113050 Wholesale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment. 

XI. F118010 Wholesale of Computer Software. 

XII. F213030 Retail Sale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment. 

XIII. F218010 Retail Sale of Computer Software. 

XIV. F401010 International Trade. 

XV. I301010 Information Software Services. 

The above-mentioned businesses that need to be licensed shall not be operated until they have been approved. 

Article 2-1 

(deleted) 

Article 3 

The company is located in Taoyuan, and may set up branches in various parts of the country when necessary. 

Article 4 

(deleted) 

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article 5 

The total capital of the company is NT$610,560,000, divided into 61,056,000 shares, with the amount of NT$10 per 

share and issued in installments. 

Article 6 

The printing of share certificates may be exempt for shares issued by the company, but registration with the central 

securities depository institution and compliance with the regulations of the institution are required. 

Article 7 

The stock affairs of the company shall be handled in accordance with the regulations of the competent authority. 

Article 8 

(deleted) 

Article 9 

(deleted) 
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Article 10 

(deleted) 

Article 11 

(deleted) 

Article 12 

The registration of transferred shares shall not be done within 60 days before the general shareholders' meeting, within 

30 days before the extraordinary shareholders' meeting, or within 5 days before the ex-date of the company’s dividends, 

bonuses or other benefits. 

Chapter 3 Shareholders' Meeting 

Article 13 

The shareholders' meeting of the company includes the general shareholders' meeting and the extraordinary 

shareholders' meeting. 

I. A general shareholders' meeting shall be convened at least once a year by the Board of Directors within six months 

after the end of each accounting year. 

II. An extraordinary shareholders' meeting shall be convened according to law when necessary. 

A shareholders' meeting may be held in the manner announced by the competent authority. 

Article 14 

30 days before a general shareholders' meeting and 15 days before an extraordinary shareholders' meeting, the date, 

place and reason for the convening of the meeting shall be provided in writing or electronically to all shareholders 

according to laws and regulations; the method of exercising voting rights may be in writing or electronically in 

accordance with relevant laws and regulations. When voting rights are exercised in writing or electronically, the method 

of exercise shall be specified in the notice of convening the shareholders' meeting. However, shareholders with less than 

1,000 shares may be notified via a public announcement. 

Article 14-1 

(deleted) 

Article 15 

The proposal of a shareholders’ meeting shall, unless otherwise provided by the Company Act be adopted by a majority 

vote of the shareholders or proxies present, who represent more than half of the total number of voting shares. 

The voting on the proposals of shareholders' meeting may be exercised in writing or electronically in accordance with 

relevant laws and regulations. However, the shareholders adopting such voting methods shall be deemed to abstain on 

extraordinary motions and amendments to the original motions at the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 16 

Each shareholder of the company has one voting right per share, except for those who are restricted or have no voting 

rights as stipulated in Article 179 of the Company Act and related laws and regulations. 

Article 17 

If unable to attend the shareholders' meeting for any reason, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting on 

his/her behalf by signing the power of attorney printed by the company and stating the scope of powers authorized to 

the proxy. In addition to the provisions of Article 177 of the Company Act, the rules for shareholders to attend by proxy 

shall be handled in accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder 

Meetings of Public Companies" promulgated by the competent authority. 

Article 18 

The chairman of the board shall preside over the shareholders’ meeting. When the chairman is on leave or unable to 

perform his duties for some reason, the situation shall be handled in accordance with the provisions of Article 208 of the 

Company Act. 

If the shareholders' meeting is convened by a person with the power to convene other than a member of the board of 

directors, the convener shall be the chairman of the meeting. If there are two or more conveners, one of them shall be 

elected to be the chairman. 
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Article 19 

The resolutions of the shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes and handled in accordance with 

the provisions of Article 183 of the Company Act. 

Chapter 4 Board of Directors 

Article 20 

The company has seven to eleven directors. The candidate nomination system is adopted for the election of directors. 

Shareholders shall select directors from the list of candidates for directors. The term of the directors is three years, and 

those who are re-elected may serve another term. Among the number of directors, the number of independent directors 

shall not be less than three, and shall not be less than one-fifth of the number of directors. The professional 

qualifications, shareholding, part-time job restrictions, recognition of independence, nomination and selection methods, 

and other matters for independent directors to be complied with shall be handled in accordance with the laws and 

regulations of the securities regulatory authority. When directors perform their duties in the Company, regardless of the 

Company's operating profit or loss, the Company may pay remuneration, and the remuneration authorizes the Board of 

Directors to negotiate on the basis of their participation in the Company's operations and the value of their 

contributions, not exceeding the highest salary standard set by the Company's salary assessment regulations. If the 

company has earnings, remunerations shall be distributed in accordance with the provisions of Article 34. 

Article 21 

The total amount of shares held by all directors of the company shall not be less than the minimum percentage of the 

total number of issued shares of the company as stipulated in the "Regulations on the Shareholding Percentage of 

Directors and Supervisors of Publicly Issued Companies and the Implementation Rules for Inspection". The chairman 

of the board of directors shall be elected among the directors by a majority vote at a meeting attended by over two-

thirds of the directors. 

Article 22 

The chairman of the board meeting shall be the chairman of the board of directors. When the chairman is on leave or 

unable to exercise his powers for some reason, it shall be handled in accordance with the provisions of Article 208 of 

the Company Act. 

Article 23 

The board meeting shall be convened by the chairman. Unless otherwise provided by the Company Act, resolutions can 

only be made in a meeting with the attendance of more than half of the directors and the consent of more than half of 

the directors present; if a director is unable to attend for some reason, he/she may submit the power of attorney listing 

the scope of authorization under the reasons for the convening of the meeting, and entrust another director to attend; 

however, each director may be entrusted by only one other director. 

If a board meeting is held via video conference, directors who attend via video conference are deemed to have attended 

the meeting in person. 

For the convening of the Board meeting, the meeting notice shall include the reason for the convening, and the directors 

shall be notified seven days in advance, but a meeting may be convened at any time in the event of an emergency. 

The board meeting of the company may be convened in writing, by electronic means or by fax. 

Article 24 

The functions and powers of the board meeting are as follows: 

I. Review and approval of all important rules and regulations of the Company. 

II. Decisions regarding the Company's business policy. 

III. Compilation and review of the Company's budget and final accounts. 

IV. Preparation of the earnings distribution. 

V. Proposal of the increase or decrease of the Company's capital. 

VI. Other functions and powers conferred by the Company Act and the shareholders' meeting. 

VII. Compilation and review of the annual business report. 

Article 25 

The minutes of the proceedings shall be signed or sealed by the chairman and the minutes taker, and distributed to the 

directors within 20 days after the meeting. The minutes shall be included in the Company's important files, and properly 
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kept during the Company's existence. 

The production and distribution of the minutes in Paragraph 1 may be done electronically. 

Chapter 5 (deleted)  

Article 26 

(deleted)  

Article 27 

(deleted)  

Article 28 

(deleted) 

Chapter 6 Managers and Employees 

Article 29 

The company has one president, whose appointment shall be submitted by the chairman to the board meeting for a 

majority approval; the same procedure applies for dismissal. The other managers shall be appointed according to the 

company’s HR regulations; the same procedure applies for their dismissal. Manager remuneration shall be handled in 

accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act and the company’s salary payment regulation. 

Article 30 

(deleted) 

Article 31 

(deleted) 

Chapter 7 Accounting 

Article 32 

At the end of each fiscal year of the Company, the Board meeting shall prepare the following statements and books and 

submit them to the shareholders' meeting for recognition according to the prescribed procedures 30 days before the 

Shareholders’ Meeting is held. 

I. Business Report. 

II. Financial statements. 

III. Proposal for earnings distribution or loss compensation. 

Article 33 

(deleted) 

Article 34 

If the company has yearly profit, it should first set aside 1% to 3% as employees’ remuneration and no more than 4% as 

directors’ remuneration. 

However, if the Company still has a cumulative loss (including adjustment of the undistributed earnings amount) and 

makes a profit in the current year, it should first make up for the loss, and then appropriate from the balance the 

directors’ remuneration in cash according to the proportion in the preceding paragraph, and the employees’ 

remuneration is to be distributed in stock or cash. The distribution shall be implemented by the resolution of the Board 

meeting with the presence of more than two-thirds of the directors and the approval by more than half of the directors 

present, and the resolution shall be reported to the shareholders' meeting. 

Article 34-1 

If there are earnings in the annual final accounts of the company, after paying taxes according to the law, 10% of the 

balance shall be allocated as the legal reserve. However, no further allocation is required when the legal reserve reaches 

the same amount as the paid-in capital of the company. After the special reserve is allocated or reversed according to 

the law, the board of directors shall draw up an earnings distribution proposal based on the distributable earnings of the 

current year plus the accumulated undistributed earnings of the previous year, and submit it to the shareholders' meeting 

for resolution on the distribution of dividends to shareholders. 

The company adopts a fixed and residual dividend policy for sustainable operation, sustainable growth and long-term 

financial planning based on the overall environment and characteristics of industrial development. Shareholders' 

dividends shall be distributed annually from the distributable earnings; the cash dividend shall be maintained between 
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10% and 90%, but may be adjusted according to changes in the internal and external business environment. 

Chapter 8 Supplemental Provisions 

Article 35 

(deleted) 

Article 36 

Any matters not covered in these Articles of Association shall be handled in accordance with the Company Act and 

other laws and regulations. 

Article 37 

These Articles of Incorporation were enacted on July 22, 1965.     

The first amendment was made on July 20, 1967. 

The second amendment was made on February 10, 1971.         

The third amendment was made on July 29, 1974. 

The fourth amendment was made on June 20, 1977.     

The fifth amendment was made on November 30, 1977. 

The sixth amendment was made on April 25, 1978.     

The seventh amendment was made on June 10, 1978. 

The eighth amendment was made on November 15, 1979.   

The ninth amendment was made on December 15, 1980. 

The tenth amendment was made on May 2, 1990.       

The eleventh amendment was made on July 29, 1992. 

The twelfth amendment was made on April 10, 1993.     

The thirteenth amendment was made on June 15, 1995. 

The fourteenth amendment was made on May 25, 1996.   

The fifteenth amendment was made on June 25, 1997. 

The sixteenth amendment was made on May 27, 1998.   

The seventeenth amendment was made on May 20, 1999. 

The eighteenth amendment was made on May 5, 2000.     

The nineteenth amendment was made on May 18, 2001. 

The twentieth amendment was made on June 14, 2002.   

The twenty-first amendment was made on June 10, 2005. 

The twenty-second amendment was made on June 9, 2006.   

The twenty-third amendment was made on June 15, 2007. 

The twenty-fourth amendment was made on June 10, 2009.   

The twenty-fifth amendment was made on June 10, 2011. 

The twenty-sixth amendment was made on June 18, 2012. 

The twenty-seventh amendment was made on June 12, 2015. 

The twenty-eighth amendment was made on June 13, 2016. 

The twenty-ninth amendment was made on June 9, 2020. 

The thirtieth amendment was made on June 9, 2022. 

 

 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

 

Responsible Person: Tsai, Cheng-Fung 
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Appendix 2 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’ Meeting 
Article 1 

In order to establish a good governance system for shareholders' meetings of the Company, improve the supervisory 

function and strengthen the management function, these Rules are formulated in accordance with the provisions of 

Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies for compliance. 

Article 2 

Shareholders’ meetings of the Company shall be conducted in accordance with the Rules of Procedure except where 

otherwise provided in laws and regulations or the Articles of Association. 

Article 3(Convening of Shareholders’ Meetings and Meeting Notices) 

Unless otherwise provided by laws or regulations, shareholders' meetings of the Company shall be convened by the 

Board of Directors. 

The Company shall, 30 days before a general shareholders’ meeting or 15 days before an extraordinary shareholders’ 

meeting, provide the notice of the shareholders’ meeting, the form for a power of attorney, and the contents and 

explanations of relevant motions for approval, matters for discussion, election or dismissal of directors etc., and 

generate an electronic file and send it to the MOPS. 21 days before a general shareholders’ meeting or 15 days before 

an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting, the meeting handbook and supplementary materials of the meeting shall be 

prepared and sent to the MOPS. 15 days before a shareholders’ meeting, the handbook of the current shareholders’ 

meeting and supplementary materials of the meeting shall be provided by request of the shareholders at any time, 

displayed at the Company and the professional stock agency appointed by the Company, and distributed on-site at the 

shareholders’ meeting. 

The reason for convening the meeting shall be specified in the notice and announcement; the notice may be sent 

electronically with the consent of the counterparty. 

The election or dismissal of directors, changes to the Articles of Association, capital reduction, application for 

suspension of the public offering, removal of director's non-competition restriction, capital increase from earnings, 

capital increase from the reserve, Company dissolution, merger, division, or all circumstances in Paragraph 1, Article 

185 of the Company Act, Article 26-1 and Article 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, and Article 56-1 and Article 

60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers shall be listed under the 

convening reason with a description of the main contents of the matter, and shall not be proposed as an extraordinary 

motion. 

If the reason for convening the shareholders' meeting has stated a full re-election of directors and the date of assuming 

office, then after the re-election is completed at the shareholders' meeting, the date of assuming office may not be 

further changed via an extraordinary motion. 

Any shareholder holding more than 1% of the total issued shares may submit to the Company in writing a proposal for 

the general shareholders’ meeting. However, each such shareholder is limited to making only one proposal. Otherwise, 

the excess proposals will not be included in the agenda. In addition, the Board of Directors may not list the proposal 

from a shareholder in the case of any of the circumstances in Item 4, Article 172-1 of the Company Act. Shareholders 

may submit proposals to urge the Company to promote public interests or to fulfill social responsibilities. Procedure-

wise, the number of such proposals shall be limited to one according to the relevant provisions of Article 172-1 of the 

Company Act. Otherwise, the excess proposals will not be included in the agenda. 

The Company shall, before the book-close date of a general shareholders’ meeting, announce the acceptance of 

proposals, the written or electronic method accepted, and the location and period of acceptance; the period of 

acceptance shall not be less than 10 days. 

A proposal made by a shareholder is limited to 300 words, and those exceeding 300 words will not be included in the 

agenda; the proposing shareholder shall either attend the general shareholders’ meeting personally or entrust an agent to 

attend and participate in the discussion of the proposals. 

The Company shall notify the proposing shareholder of the results of the acceptance before the date the convening 

notice is sent, and shall include in the meeting notice the proposals compliant with the requirements of this article. For 

shareholders’ proposals that are not included in the agenda, the Board of Directors shall explain the reasons for non-
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inclusion. 

Article 4 

The shareholders may, for each shareholders’ meeting, issue a power of attorney printed by the Company with the 

scope of authorization specified, and entrust an agent to attend the shareholders' meeting. 

Each shareholder is limited to issuing one power of attorney and entrusting only one person, and shall have the power of 

attorney delivered to the Company five days before the date of the shareholders' meeting. If the entrustment is repeated, 

the first one delivered shall prevail. However, the above does not apply if a declaration is made on the revocation of the 

entrustment previously delivered. 

After the power of attorney is delivered to the Company, if the shareholder wishes to attend the shareholders' meeting 

personally or wishes to exercise voting rights in writing or electronically, a notice of revocation shall be delivered to the 

Company in writing two days before the date of the shareholders' meeting; if the power of attorney is cancelled after the 

time limit, the voting rights exercised by the entrusted agent shall prevail. 

Article 5 (Principles for the Venue and Time of Shareholders' Meetings) 

The place of the meeting shall be the place where the Company is located or where it is convenient for the shareholders 

to attend. The meeting starting time shall not be before 9:00 a.m. or after 3:00 p.m., and the opinions of the independent 

directors shall be taken into full account when considering the meeting place and time. 

Article 6 (Preparation of Documents Such as the Sign-in Book) 

The Company shall specify in the meeting notice the time and place for the shareholder's registration and other matters 

needing attention. 

The time for the shareholder's registration referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be at least 30 minutes before the 

meeting; the registration office shall be clearly marked, and sufficient qualified personnel shall be sent to handle the 

registration. 

The shareholder himself or his agent (hereinafter referred to as the shareholder) shall attend the shareholders' meeting 

based on the attendance card, sign-in card, or other attendance certificates. The Company shall not arbitrarily add other 

supporting documents to the certification documents based on which the shareholders attend the meeting. The solicitor 

of the power of attorney for attending the meeting shall carry legal identification for verification. 

The Company shall prepare a sign-in book for the attending shareholders to sign in, or the attending shareholders may 

submit their sign-in cards for signing in. 

The Company shall deliver the meeting handbook, Annual Report, attendance cards, speech slips, voting ballots, and 

other meeting materials to the shareholders present at the shareholders' meeting; if there is a re-election of directors, 

electing ballots shall also be attached. 

When the government or a legal person is a shareholder, the number of its representatives present at the shareholders’ 

meeting is not limited to one. When a legal person is entrusted to attend a shareholders’ meeting, only one 

representative may be appointed to attend. 

Article 7 (Chairman of the Shareholders' Meeting and Non-voting Attendees) 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board shall act as the meeting 

Chairman. If the Chairman is on leave or unable to perform his duties for some reason, the Chairman shall designate a 

director to act as his deputy. When the Chairman does not appoint a deputy, the directors shall elect one from among 

themselves as the deputy. 

If the Chairman of the preceding paragraph is deputized by a director, the director shall have served for more than six 

months and understands the Company's financial and business conditions. The same applies if the Chairman is the 

representative of a corporate director. 

For a shareholders’ meeting convened by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board shall preside in person, and 

more than half of the directors of the Board of Directors and at least one member of each functional committee shall 

attend; the attendance shall be recorded in the shareholders’ meeting minutes. 

If a shareholders' meeting is convened by a person with the power to convene other than a member of the Board of 

Directors, the convener shall be the Chairman of the meeting. If there are two or more conveners, one of them shall be 

elected to be the Chairman. 

The Company may appoint its designated lawyers, accountants, or related personnel to attend the shareholders’ meeting 

as non-voting delegates. 
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Article 8 (Retention of Audio or Video Recording of Shareholders' Meetings) 

The Company shall, from the time of the shareholder's registration, continuously record audio and video of the process 

of shareholder's registration, the process of the meeting, and the process of voting and vote counting. 

The audio and video recording data mentioned in the preceding paragraph shall be kept for at least one year. However, 

if any shareholder brings a lawsuit in accordance with Article 189 of the Company Act, the data shall be kept until the 

end of the lawsuit. 

Article 9 

Attendance at shareholders’ meetings shall be calculated based on the number of shares. The number of attending 

shares is calculated based on the number of shares represented on the sign-in book or sign-in cards from the attending 

shareholders or the shareholders' proxies, plus the number of shares of shareholders exercising their voting rights in 

writing or electronically. 

The Chairman shall call the meeting to order at the specified meeting time. 

However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued shares, the 

Chairman may announce a meeting postponement, provided that the number of such postponements is no more than 

two, and the total time is no more than one hour. If the attending shareholders still do not represent one third of the total 

number of issued shares after two postponements, the Chairman shall declare the meeting aborted. 

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but the attending 

shareholders represent one third or more of the total number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted 

pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 175 of the Company Act, and all shareholders shall be notified of the tentative 

resolution and another shareholders’ meeting shall be convened within one month. 

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the total number of issued 

shares, the Chairman may resubmit the tentative resolution for voting at the shareholders’ meeting pursuant to Article 

174 of the Company Act. 

Article 10 (Proposal Discussion) 

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall be set by the Board of 

Directors, and the resolutions of related motions shall be made by voting. The meeting shall proceed in the order set in 

the agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. 

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders’ meeting convened by a party with 

the power to convene but who is not a member of the Board of Directors. 

The Chairman may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of the meeting agenda (including 

extraordinary motions) of the preceding two paragraphs except by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. If the 

Chairman declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the other members of the Board of 

Directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing a new Chairman in accordance with statutory 

procedures, and then continue the meeting based on the agreement of a majority of the votes represented by the 

attending shareholders. 

The Chairman shall allow ample opportunities during the meeting for explanation and discussion of motions and their 

amendments or extraordinary motions put forward by the shareholders; when the Chairman is of the opinion that a 

motion has been discussed sufficiently for voting, the Chairman may announce a cessation of the discussion and call for 

a vote, and arrange sufficient time for voting. 

Article 11 (Speaking of Shareholders) 

Before speaking, an attending shareholder shall specify on the speaker's slip his/her speech summary, shareholder 

account number (or attendance card number), and account name. The order in which shareholders speak shall be set by 

the Chairman. 

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted the speaker’s slip but does not actually speak shall be deemed to have 

not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the subject given on the speaker’s slip, the spoken 

content shall prevail. 

Without the consent of the Chairman, each shareholder who speaks on the same motion shall not speak more than twice, 

and the speech each time shall not exceed five minutes. If the shareholder’s speech violates the rules above or exceeds 

the scope of the agenda item, the Chairman may terminate the speech. 

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless they have obtained the 

consent of the Chairman and the speaking shareholder; the Chairman shall stop any violation. 



 
             

YONG SHUN CHEMICAL.,LTD 

- 48 - 

 

When a legal person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders’ meeting, only one of the 

representatives so appointed may speak on the same motion. 

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the Chairman may respond in person or direct relevant personnel to respond. 

Article 12 (Calculation of the Number of Voting Shares and the Avoidance System) 

The voting at a shareholders' meeting shall be based on the number of shares. 

The shares held by shareholders with no voting rights shall not be counted in the total number of issued shares while 

adopting a resolution at a shareholders’ meeting. 

When a shareholder has personal interests in items at the meeting which may cause harmful results to the interests of 

the Company, he/she shall not participate in the voting and shall not exercise voting rights on behalf of other 

shareholders. 

The number of shares that may not exercise voting rights referred to in the preceding paragraph shall not be counted in 

the number of voting rights of the shareholders present. 

Except for trust enterprises or stock agencies approved by the competent authority, when a person who acts as the proxy 

for two or more shareholders, the number of voting power represented by him/her shall not exceed 3% of the total 

number of voting shares of the Company. Otherwise, the portion of excessive voting power shall not be counted. 

Article 13 

Except in the circumstances otherwise provided for in Paragraph 2, Article 179 of the Company Act, each shareholder 

shall have one voting power in respect of each share in his/her/its possession. 

When the Company convenes a shareholders’ meeting, it shall adopt electronic means and may adopt a written method 

for the exercise of voting rights. When voting rights exercised in writing or electronically, the exercise method shall be 

stated in the meeting notice. Shareholders who exercise voting rights in writing or electronically are deemed to have 

attended the shareholders’ meeting in person. However, the exercise of voting rights for extraordinary motions and 

amendments to the original motions of the shareholders’ meeting shall be deemed as abstentions; therefore, the 

Company shall avoid proposing extraordinary motions and amendments to the original motions. 

When the voting right is exercised in writing or electronically, the expression of intention shall be delivered to the 

Company two days before the shareholders’ meeting. If the expression of intention is repeated, the first one that is 

delivered shall prevail. However, this does not apply to those which declare to revoke the previous expression of 

opinions. 

After shareholders have exercised their voting rights in writing or electronically, if they wish to attend the shareholders’ 

meeting in person, they shall revoke their expression of intention to exercise the voting rights mentioned in the 

preceding paragraph two days before the shareholders’ meeting. Otherwise, the voting rights exercised in writing or 

electronically shall prevail for late revocation. If voting rights are exercised in writing or electronically and a proxy is 

entrusted to attend the shareholders’ meeting with a power of attorney, the voting rights exercised by the entrusted 

proxy shall prevail. 

The voting of the motion shall be passed with the approval of a majority of the voting rights of the shareholders present, 

unless otherwise stipulated in the Company Act and the Articles of Association of the Company. When voting, 

shareholders shall cast their ballots to vote for or against each proposal. On the day after the shareholders’ meeting, the 

results of shareholders' approval, opposition, and abstention shall be entered into the MOPS. 

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a motion, the Chairman shall present the amended or alternative 

motion together with the original motion, and decide the order in which they will be put to the vote. When any one 

among them is passed, the other motions will then be deemed rejected and no further voting shall be required. 

Vote scrutinizing and counting personnel for the voting on a motion shall be appointed by the Chairman, provided that 

all the scrutinizing personnel shall be shareholders of the Company. 

The vote counting operation of voting or election at a shareholders' meeting shall be conducted in a public place at the 

venue of the shareholders’ meeting, and the voting results, including the number of voting rights, shall be announced on 

the spot after the completion of the counting and recorded accordingly. 

Article 14 (Election） 

When there is an election of directors at a shareholders' meeting, it shall be handled in accordance with the relevant 

election rules prescribed by the Company, and the election results, including a list of elected directors and a list of 

candidates who failed to be elected and the number of voting rights they received respectively, shall be announced on 

the spot. 



 
             

YONG SHUN CHEMICAL.,LTD 

- 49 - 

 

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed and signed by the monitoring 

personnel and properly kept for at least one year. However, if any shareholder brings a lawsuit in accordance with 

Article 189 of the Company Act, the data shall be kept until the end of the lawsuit. 

Article 15 

The resolutions of the shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes, signed or sealed by the 

Chairman, and distributed to the shareholders within 20 days after the meeting. The production and distribution of the 

minutes may be done electronically. 

For the distribution of minutes referred to in the preceding paragraph, the Company may enter the minutes on the 

MOPS for public announcement. 

The minutes shall be taken in order of the date, place, name of the Chairman, resolution method, essentials of the 

proceedings, and voting results (including the number of voting rights), and the number of voting rights received by 

each candidate shall be disclosed when there is an election of directors. The minutes shall be kept permanently during 

the existence of the Company. 

Article 16 (Public Announcements) 

The Company shall clearly disclose at the meeting venue and in the prescribed format the number of shares acquired by 

solicitors and the number of shares represented by entrusted agents on the day of the meeting. 

If the resolution of a shareholders' meeting contains any material information stipulated by law or provided by the 

Taipei Exchange, the Company shall transmit the contents to the MOPS before the specified deadline. 

Article 17 (Maintenance of Meeting Venue Order) 

The personnel handling the affairs of the shareholders' meeting shall wear identification cards or armbands. 

The Chairman may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting place. When proctors 

or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing 

the word "Proctor". 

At the venue of the shareholders’ meeting where speaking equipment is equipped, if a shareholder attempts to speak 

through any device other than the equipment set up by the Company, the Chairman may prevent the shareholder from 

doing so. 

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the Chairman’s correction, or obstructs the proceedings 

and refuses to heed calls to stop, the Chairman may direct the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder 

out of the meeting venue. 

Article 18 (Breaks and Continuation of a Meeting) 

When a meeting is in progress, the Chairman may announce a break based on time considerations. If a force majeure 

event occurs, the Chairman may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the 

circumstances, the meeting will be resumed. 

Before the conclusion of the proceedings (including extraordinary motions) scheduled for the shareholders' meeting, if 

the venue for the meeting cannot continue to be used, another venue may be found to continue the meeting upon the 

resolution of the shareholders. 

The shareholders' meeting may, in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act, decide to postpone or renew the 

meeting within five days. 

Article 19 

These rules shall come into force after being approved by a shareholders' meeting, and the same shall apply when they 

are amended. 

Article 20 

These rules were established on June 15, 1995. 

The first amendment was made on June 14, 2002. 

The second amendment was made on June 9, 2006. 

The third amendment was made on June 9, 2020. 

The fourth amendment was made on June 9, 2022. 
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Appendix 3 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Procedures for Election of Directors 

Article 1 

To ensure a just, fair, and open election of directors, these Procedures are adopted pursuant to Articles 21 and 41 of the 

Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies. 

Article 2 

Except as otherwise provided by law and regulation or by the Company's Articles of Incorporation, elections of 

directors shall be conducted in accordance with these Procedures. 

Article 3 

The overall composition of the board of directors shall be taken into consideration in the selection of the Company's 

directors. The composition of the board of directors shall be determined by taking diversity into consideration and 

formulating an appropriate policy on diversity based on the Company's business operations, operating dynamics, and 

development needs. It is advisable that the policy include, without being limited to, the following two general standards: 

I. Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture. 

II. Professional knowledge and skills: A professional background (e.g., law, accounting, industry, finance, 

marketing, technology), professional skills, and industry experience. 

Each board member shall have the necessary knowledge, skill, and experience to perform their duties; the abilities that 

must be present in the board as a whole are as follows: 

I. Ability to make judgments about operations. 

II. Ability to perform accounting and financial analysis. 

III. Ability to conduct business management. 

IV.  Ability to conduct crisis management. 

V.  Knowledge of the industry. 

VI. An international market perspective. 

VII. Ability to lead. 

VIII. Ability to make decisions. 

More than half of the directors shall be persons who have neither a spousal relationship nor a relationship within the 

second degree of kinship with any other director. 

The board of directors of the Company shall consider adjusting its composition based on the results of performance 

evaluation. 

Article 4 

The qualifications for the independent directors of the Company shall comply with Articles 2, 3 and 4 of the 

Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies. 

The election of independent directors of the Company shall comply with Articles 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of the Regulations 

Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies, and shall be 

conducted in accordance with Article 24 of the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed 

Companies. 

Article 5 

Elections of directors at the Company shall be conducted in accordance with the candidate nomination system and 

procedures set out in Article 192-1 of the Company Act. 



 
             

YONG SHUN CHEMICAL.,LTD 

- 51 - 

 

When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director for any reason, the Company shall hold 

a by-election to fill the vacancy at its next shareholders' meeting. When the number of directors falls short by one-third 

of the total number prescribed in the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the Company shall call an extraordinary 

shareholders' meeting within 60 days from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies. 

When the number of independent directors falls below that required under the proviso of Article 14-2, paragraph 1 of 

the Securities and Exchange Act, a by-election shall be held at the next shareholders' meeting to fill the vacancy. When 

the independent directors are dismissed en masse, an extraordinary shareholders' meeting shall be called within 60 days 

from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies. 

Article 6 

The cumulative voting method shall be used for the election of the directors at the Company. Each share will have 

voting rights in number equal to the directors to be elected, and may be cast for a single candidate or split among 

multiple candidates. 

Article 7 

The board of directors shall prepare separate ballots for directors in numbers corresponding to the directors to be 

elected. The number of voting rights associated with each ballot shall be specified on the ballots, which shall then be 

distributed to the attending shareholders at the shareholders' meeting. Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots 

may be used instead of recording the names of voting shareholders. 

Article 8 

The number of directors will be as specified in the Company's Articles of Incorporation, with voting rights separately 

calculated for independent and non-independent director positions. Those receiving ballots representing the highest 

number of voting rights will be elected sequentially according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more 

persons receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding the specified number of positions, they shall draw lots to 

determine the winner, with the chair drawing lots on behalf of any person not in attendance. 

Article 9 

Before the election begins, the chair shall appoint a number of persons with shareholder status to perform the respective 

duties of vote monitoring and counting personnel. The ballot boxes shall be prepared by the board of directors and 

publicly checked by the vote monitoring personnel before voting commences. 

Article 10 

In the candidate section of the ballot, the name of the government or legal entity should be filled in. The name of the 

government or legal entity and the name of its representative(s) may also be filled in; if there are multiple 

representatives, the name of each representative should be added separately. 

Article 11 

A ballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances: 

I. The ballot was not prepared by a person with the right to convene. 

II. A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box. 

III. The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered. 

IV.  The candidate whose name is entered in the ballot does not conform to the director candidate list. 

V.  Other words or marks are entered in addition to the number of voting rights allotted. 

Article 12 

The voting rights shall be calculated on site immediately after the end of the poll, and the results of the calculation, 

including the list of persons elected as directors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected, shall be 

announced by the chair or others designated by the chair on the site. 

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed and signed by the monitoring 

personnel and properly kept for at least one year. However, if any shareholder brings a lawsuit in accordance with 
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Article 189 of the Company Act, the data shall be kept until the end of the lawsuit. 

Article 13 

These Procedures and any amendments hereto shall be implemented after approval by a shareholders' meeting. 

These Procedures were established on June 15, 1995. 

The First Amendment was made on June 14, 2002. 

The Second Amendment was made on June 10, 2009. 

The Third Amendment was made on June 10, 2011. 

The Fourth Amendment was made on June 18, 2012. 

The Fifth Amendment was made on June 12, 2015. 

The Sixth Amendment was made on June 9, 2020. 

The Seventh Amendment was made on June 9, 2022. 
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Appendix 4 

 

Yong Shun Chemical Co., Ltd. 

Number of Shares Held by All Directors  

and Minimum Number of Shares to be Held 

 

I. The statutory percentages and shares to be held by the current directors of the Company are as 

follows: 

Number of Ordinary Shares of the Company to be Issued: 61,056,000 

    Statutory Percentage to be Held by All Directors: 10% 

    Minimum Statutory Number of Shares to be Held by All Directors: 4,884,480 

    Note: In accordance with Article 2 of the Rules and Review Procedures for Director and 

Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public Companies: The shareholdings of 

independent directors elected by a public company shall not be counted in the total 

referred to in the preceding paragraph; if the Company has elected two or more 

independent directors, the share ownership figures calculated at the rates set forth in the 

preceding paragraph for all directors and supervisors other than the independent directors 

and shall decrease to 80 percent. 

 

II. As of the closing date of the general shareholders' meeting on April 21, 2025, the number of 

shares held by all directors is as follows: 

 

Title Name Shareholding 

Chairman Tsai, Cheng-Fung 3,492,490 

Director Tsai, Chi-Lung 1,432,527 

Director Lin, Cheng-Chien 4,205,821 

Director Lin, Tsyr-Huan 6,305,327 

Director Lin, Jih-Cheng 27,810 

Director Lin Wu, Fang-Mei 91,080 

Independent Director Cheng, Chit-Man 0 

Independent Director Chin, Chang-Ming 0 

Independent Director Chou, Man-Chin 0 

Number of Shares Held by All Directors 15,555,055 
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Appendix 5  

Other Explanations 

 

I. Explanation on the Handling of Shareholders' Proposals at the Current General 

Shareholders' Meeting: 

Explanation: 1. In accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, shareholders holding 

more than 1% of the total number of issued shares may submit to the 

Company proposals for the general shareholders' meeting. However, the 

number of such proposals shall be limited to one; if more than one proposal 

is submitted, none will be included in the agenda. 

 2. Acceptance of Shareholders' Written Proposal Applications and 

Director/Independent Director Candidate Nominations for the Company's 

General Shareholders' Meeting This Year: The period is from March 20, 

2025, to March 31, 2025, and it has been announced on the MOPS 

according to law.       

 3. As of March 31, 2025, the Company has not received any applications for 

written proposals from shareholders or nominations for director candidates 

and independent director candidates. 


